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1231 East Laurel Avenue p 337-457-4146 DSFCPAS.COM
Eunice, LA 70535 F 337-457-5060
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Dg i:e:;lé glllc(E s ﬁafayet‘:e Morgan City Abbeville

A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor
And Members of the City Council
City of Abbeville, Louisiana

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Abbeville, Louisiana,
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the City’s primary government as listed in the table
of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.



Basis for Adverse Opinion on Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units and Qualified
Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund Information

The financial statements referred to above do not include financial data for the City’s legally separate
component units. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require
financial data for those component units o be reported with the financial data of the City’s primary
government unless the City also issues financial statements for the financial reporting entity that include
the financial data for its component uniis. The City has not issued such reporiing entity financial
statements. The amount by which this departure would affect the assets, liabilities, net position, revenues
and cxpenditures of the governmental activitics has not been determined.

Adverse Opinion on Aggregate Discrelely Presented Component Units

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter described in the “Basis for Adverse Opinion on
Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units and Qualified Opinion on Apgregate Remaining Fund
Information” paragraph, the financial statements referred to above do nob present fairly the financial
position of the aggregate discretely presented component units of the City of Abbeville, Louisiana, as of
December 31, 2019, or the changes in financial position thercol for the year then ended.

Qualified Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund Information

In our opinion, except for the maiter described in the “Basis [or Adverse Opinion on Aggregate Discretely
Presented Component Units and Qualified Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund Information”
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Abbeville, Louisiana, as of December
31, 2019, and the changes in financial position and cash flows thercof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Uniled Staies of America.

Unmodified Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmenial aciivities, the business-type activities, and each major
fund of the City of Abbeville, Louisiana, as of December 31, 2019, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary
comparison schedules, the schedule of changes in net OPEB liabilitv and related ratios, the schedule of
proportionate share of net pension liability, and the schedule of contributions on pages 56-60 be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic tinancial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, cconomic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management  abouwl  the methods of  preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to owr
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.



Management has omifted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an cssential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Information

Our audit was conducied for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Abbeville, Louisiana’s basic financial statements. The budgetary comparison
schedules, combining and individual nonmajor [und f(inancial sialements, and the comparalive
departmental analysis of utility fund are presented for purposes of additional analvsis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Reguirements for Federal
Awards., and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The budgetary comparison schedules, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the
comparative departmental analysis of utility fund, and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly 1o the underlving accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
audiling procedures applied in the audit of the basic [inancial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlving accounting
and other records used o prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the budgetary comparison schedules, combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in all maierial respecis in relation lo the
basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 8, 2020, on
our consideration of the City of Abbeville, Louisiana’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
infernal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards in considering City of Abbeville,
Louisiana’s infernal conirol over financial reporling and compliance.

Darnall, Sikes & Frederick
A Corporation of Certified Public Accouniants

Abbeville, Louisiana
July 8, 2020
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2019

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018 (restated)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and mterest-bearing deposits
Receivables, net
Due from other governmental units
Inventory-materials and supplies, at cost
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and interest-bearing deposits
Capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESCURCES

Deferred outflows related to net
COPLEDB

Deferred outtlows related to net
pension liability

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts, salaries and other payables
Capital lease payable
Bonds payable, due within cne year
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent habilities:
Compensated absences
Customers deposits
OPER obligations
INet pension hability
Bonds payable, due in more than one year
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total habilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to net OPEB
Dieferred mflows related to net
pension hability

NET POSITION
Net mvestment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position (deficit)

Governmental Business-Type 2018 Restated
Activities Activitics Total Totals

§ 2,208,694 $ 1,977,297 $ 4,185,991 $ 5,257.910
686,821 1,876,729 2.563.550 2,509,143
103,959 - 103,959 80,946
4.324 325.520 329.844 332,042
3,003,798 4.179.546 7.183.344 8.180.041
- 998,920 998.920 978,013
18,129,674 13,374,312 31,503,986 31.490.480
18,129.674 14.373.232 32.502.906 32.468.493
21.133.472 18.552.778 39.686.250 40.648.534
1,064,421 354,807 1.419.228 -
1,809,732 350.426 2.160.158 1.592.088
2.874.1353 705,233 3.579.386 1.592.088
S57,490 608,346 1.165.836 1,244,185

- - - 46,373

694.000 - 694,000 615.000
1,251,490 608,346 1.859.836 1.905.558
694,066 - 694,066 601,170

- 998,920 998.920 978,013
14,748,445 4.916.148 19,664,593 27.815,789
8,027,109 1.494.347 9,521,456 8,801,289
2.544.000 - 2.544 000 3.238.000
26.013.620 7.409.415 33.423.035 41.524 261
27.265.110 8.017.761 35,282,871 43.429.819

1.039.843

4,139,372

LA
4

L2

3.435,73

1.133.608 103.264 1.236.872 1.659.623
4.253.137 1.143.107 5.396.244 5.095.356
14,891,674 13,374,312 28,265,986 30,695,107

(22.402.296)

(3.277.169)

(25.679.4635)

(36.977.660)

$ (7.510.622)

$ 10,097,143

$.2.586521

S{6 284 5531

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Statement of Activities
Year Ended Decernber 31, 2019

Program Revemies

Net (Expense) Revenues and

Operating Capital Changes m Net Positon
Fees, Fines, and Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Activities Expoernses Charges for Services Contribubions Contributions Actvitics Activilies Total
Governmental activities:
General govertmment 784,849 b3 384714 $ 138476 § 182,035 g 130,376 $ - $ 130376
Public safety:
Pdlice 834,496 60,243 49,262 - (724,991} - (724,991}
Fire 1,060,719 - 169,688 - (831,031) - (831,031)
Highways and streels 1,639,796 - - 800,000 (839,796 - (839,796
Culture and recreation 437779 - - - {437,779 - {437,779
Interest on long-term debt 83228 - - - (83.228) - (83.228)
Total governmental activities 4,780,867 644,957 357426 992,035 2,786,449) - 2,786,449)
Business-type aclivities:
Electric 7744174 13,106,543 - - - 5,362,369 5,362,368
Water 973,796 1,856,895 - - - 883,099 883,099
Sewer 1.306.632 1.840.597 - - - 533965 533965
Tolal business-lype aclivitics 10.024.602 16.804.035 - - - 6.779.433 6.779.433
Total 14.805 469 $ 17448007 $. 337426 § 02 035 (2,786,449 779433 3.992 084
General reveimes:
Taxes -
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 338473 - 338473
Property taxes, levied for sewer improvement 84,633 - 84,633
Sales and use taxes, levied for general purposes 3,750,727 - 3,756,727
Payment in licu of taxes 19,184 - 19,184
Franclise and chain store taxes 211,537 - 211,537
Interest and investment earnings 3,107 31,523 69,630
Miscellaneous 397606 - 397 606
Transfers 5.806.536 (5.806.536) -
Total general revenues and transfers 10633103 (5775013 4.878.090
Change in net position 7.866,654 1,004,420 8,871,074
Net postition {deficit) - restated - December 31, 2018 (15.377.276} 9092723 (6,284,553}

Net posttion {deficit) - December 31, 2019

$ (7o1Q62y  § o l0gurias &

2 586 571

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FFS)



MAJOR FUNDS

General Fund

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with governmenis which are
not required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Fund
Sales Tax Fund —

To account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the City’s one and one-quarter percent sales and use tax.
These taxes are dedicaied to the following purposes: constructing, acquiring, improving, and maintaining
police and fire department stations and equipment; garbage and waste disposal facilities; streets,
sidewalks, and drainage facilitics; sewer and sewerage disposal works; park facilities; and paying a
portion of the salaries and benefits of City emplovees.

Enterprise Fund

Utility Fund ~

To account for the provision of eleciric, water, and sewerage services fo residents of the City. All
activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to,
adminisiralion, operations, maintenance, [inancing and related debt service, and billing and collection.



CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2019
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018

Other Totals
General Sales Tax  Governmental (Memorandum Only)
ASSETS Fund Fund Funds 2019 2018
Cash and interest-bearing deposits § 472,570 % 879,851 § 745808  §2,098,229 §2,791,633
Reccivables:
Taxes 68,558 390,733 17,153 476,444 398,106
Franchise fees and royaliies 164,292 - - 164,292 176,536
Other 18,424 18,219 9,442 46,085 9,776
Due from other governments 12,614 - 91,345 103,959 80,946
Inventory 4,324 - - 4.324 4.456
Total assets S 740782 $1288803 3 863748 $2.893333 $3461.453
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable § 68,200 % 2,840 § 113,064 § 184,104 § 209,455
Accrued salarics 171,613 - - 171,613 140,037
Other accrued labilities 75,035 - - 75,035 68,251
Due 1o other funds 108.250 - - 108.250 1135.029
Total liabilities 423 098 2.840 113.064 539.002 532772
Fund balances:
Nonspendable - inventory 4,324 - - 4,324 4,456
Restricted for economic development - - 24,078 24,078 24,078
Restricted for youth recreation - - - - -
Restricted for fire protection - - 90,946 90,946 101,350
Restricted for sewer improvement - - 60,882 60,882 94,837
Restricted for salaries and benefits - 410,211 - 410,211 205,871
Restricted for capital outlay - 875,752 - 875,752 900,872
Restricted for airport operations 11,608 - - 11,608 542,951
Assigned for debt service - - 574,778 574,778 512,420
Unassigned 301,752 - - 301.752 541.846
Total fund balances 317.684 1.285.963 750.684 2.354.331 2.928.681
‘Total liabilities and fund balances S 740782 $1288803 $ 863748 $£2.893 333 $3 461 453

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the basic financial statements.,
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2019

Total fund balances for governmental funds at December 31, 2019 $ 2,354,331

Total net position reported for governmental activitics in the statement of net
position is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:

Land $ 898,029
Construclion in progress 238,391
Buildings, net of $1,777,732 accumulated depreciation 2,432,208
Infrastructure, net of $28,019,208 accumulated depreciation 6,476,054
Equipment, furniture, and fixtures net of $4,175,727 accumulated depreciation 2,133,681

Improvements other than buildings, nct of $14,808,914 accumulated depreciation 5,951,311 18,129,674

Some liabilitics are not due and pavable in the current period and,
therefore, arc not reported as liabilitics in the funds. Those
Labilities consist of:

Bonds pavable (3,238,000)
Compensated absences {694,066)
OPEB obligations (14,748,445)
Net pension liability (8.027.10%)  (26,707,620)

Net deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB are not due and
pavable in the current period expenditures and therefore are not reported in the funds (2,055,108)

Net deferred outflows and deferred inflows  of resources related to pensions are not

available to pay current period expenditures and therefore are not reported in the funds 676,124
Net position of the Internal Service Funds 91.977
Total net position (deficit) of governmenial activities at December 31, 2019 3 (7.510.622)

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the basic [inancial stalemenis.
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —
Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2019
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Other Totals
General Sales Tax  Governmental {Memorandum Only)
Fund Fund Funds 2019 2018
Revenues:
Taxes $§ 369,567 $3,756,727 § 84,633  $4,210,927  $4,035,877
Licenses and permits 584.714 - - 584,714 593,174
Intergovernmental 237,286 25,000 1,087,175 1,349,461 771,918
Fines and forfeitures 60,243 - - 60,243 93,650
Miscellancous 559,207 11.378 44.495 615,080 572.540
Total revenues 1.811.017 3.793.105 1,216,303 6,820,425 6,067.159
Expenditures:
Current -
General government 1,832,723 8,242 - 1,840,965 1,803,823
Public safety:
Police 3,027,537 16,594 - 3,044,131 3,000,278
ke 3,359,799 34,674 10,992 3,405,465 3,181,470
Highways and streets 1,145,928 184,489 - 1,330,417 1,314,843
Culture and recreation 445,933 7,956 - 453,889 402,922
Capital outlay 762,907 416,105 1,223,391 2,402,403 1,387,443
Debt service -
Principal retuement - 46,373 613,000 661,373 640,956
Interest and fiscal charges - 2.551 80,677 83.228 99,344
Total expenditures 10.574.827 716,984 1,930,060  13,221.871 11.831.079
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (8.763.810) _3.076.121 {(713.757) (6.,401.446) (5.763.920)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 8,011,553 20,000 906,617 8,938,170 8,544,302
Transfers oul (18,028 (2,916,901} (176,145 (3.111.074) (3.125.742)
Total other financing sources (uses) _ 7.993,525 (2.896.901) 730,472 5,827.096 5,418.560
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over expenditures and other
financing uses {770,285) 179,220 16,715 {574,350) (345,360)
Fund balances, beginning 1,087,969 1,106,743 733.969 2.928.681 3.274.041
Fund balances, ending § 317684 $1.285963 $  750.684 $2.354331 $2.928 681

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2019

Total net changes in fund balances at December 31, 2019 per Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,

m the statement of activitics, the cost of those assets is allocated over

their estimated useful ives and reported as depreciation expense.
Capital outlay which is considered expenditures on Statement

of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances $2,402,403
Depreciation expense for the vear ended December 31, 2019 (1,510,212}

The repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term labilities in the statement
of nel position. This amount is the net elfect of these differences in
the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Net mcrease {decrease) of the Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund

Excess (deficiency) of compensated absences used over compensated absences earned

OPEB benefits {expenses) reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, thereflore, are not reported as
benefits (expenditures) in governmental funds

Net effect of pension hability recognition

Difference between interest on long-term debt on modified accrual basis
versus infercst on long-term debt on accrual basis

Total changes in net position at December 31, 2019 per Statement of Activitics

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial siatemenis.
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$ (574.350)

892,191

661,373
87,083

(92,896)

6,635,089

232.934

25,230

$ 7.866.654



CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Comparative Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2019 and 2018

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and interest-bearing deposits
Recevables:
Accounts
Unbilled utility recervables
Other
Due from other tunds
Inventory - materials and supplies, at cost
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets -
Cash and interest-bearing deposits
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to OPEB
Deterred outflows related to pension labilities

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries payable
Other accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Customers’ deposits
OPEB obligations
Net pension hability
Total noncurrent habilitics

Total habilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred mflows related to OPEB
Deterred mflows related to pension liabilities

NET POSITION
Net mvestment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

Busmess-tvpe Activitics -
Enterprise Fund

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

2019 2018 2019 2018
$ 1,977,297 $ 2452491 $ 158,715 $§ 83815
1,180,583 1,242,305 - -
696,146 632,527 - -

- - - 34,393

- - 60,000 60,000

325,520 327,386 - -
4,179,546 4,653,409 218.715 178,208
998,920 978,013 - -
13.374.312 _14.252.997 - -
14.373.232  _15.231.010 - -
18.552.778  _19.886.419 218,715 178,208
354,807 - ; ]
350,426 302,683 - -
705.233 302,683 - -
547,303 570,244 126,738 173,314
22,662 19,020 - ;
23,381 23,634 - -
15,000 15,000 - )
608,346 627.898 126,738 173.314
998,920 978,013 - -
4,916,148 6,953,947 - -
1,494,347 1.554.092 - -
7.409.415 9,486,052 - -
8017761 _10.113.950 126,738 173.314
1,039,843 858,933 - -
103,264 123.496 - -
1,143,107 982,429 - -
13,374,312 14,252,997 - -
(3.277.169)  _(5.160.274) 91,977 4.894
$10.097.143 $.9092.723 §$..91977 % 43894

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the basic [inancial stalemenis.
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprictary Funds
Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

Business-type Activities-
Entorprise Fund

2019 2018 2019 2018
Operating revenuss:
Charges for services 516,492,714 $16,562,380 $2,476,308 $2,251,889
Other 311,321 322,221 201,593 719,535
Total operating revenues 16.804,035 16,884.601 2,678.101 2.971.424
Opcrating cxpenscs:
Electric department 7,376,789 8,401,792 - -
Water department 674,517 1,864,271 - -
Sewerage department 770,406 1,560,019 - -
Depreciation 1,182,330 1,175,400 - -
Sell insurance expenses - - 2,591,333 3,118,276
‘T'otal operating expenses 10,004,042 13.001.482 2,591,333 3.118.276
Operating income (10ss) 6,799,993 3.883.119 86,768 (146.852)
Nonoperaling revenues:
Interest income 31,523 22,894 315 660
Grant revenucs - 181.697 - -
Total nonoperating revenues 31,523 204.591 315 660
Income (loss) before contributions
and transfers 6,831,516 4.087.710 87,083 (146.192)
Transfers in {out):
Transfers in 384,972 552,168 - -
Transfers out (6,212,008} (5,970.728) - -
Total transfers in (out) (5.827,096) (5,418,560} - -
Change in net position 1,004,420 (1,330,850) 87.083 (146,192)
Net position, beginning, restaied 9,092,723 10.423.573 4,894 151.086
Net position, ending $10097143 § 9092723 S 91977 & 4.894

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Comparative Statement of Cash Flows

Proprictary Funds

Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Business-type Activities ~
Enterprise Fund

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

2019 2018 2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers $16,491,317 $16,697,89% 8 - 3% .
Receipts from interfund services provided - - 2,476,508 2,191,889
Payments to supplicrs (8,768,410} (8,719,554) (2,637.909) (3.088,548)
Payments to employees (2,410,204) (2,401,558 - -
Other receipts 311.321 322,221 235.986 8§19.114
Net cash provided (used)
by operating activities 5,624,024 5.899.008 74,385 (77.534%5)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers from other funds 384,972 552,168 - -
Transfers to other funds (6,212.068) (5.970.728) - -
Net cash used by noncapital
financing activities (5.827.096) (5.418.560) - -
Cash flows from capital and related financing aciivities:
Net proceeds of meter deposits 20,907 14,724 - -
Granis - 181,697 - -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (303.645) (550.551) - -
Net cash used by capital and related
financing activitics (282,738} (354,130} - -
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments 31.523 22.893 5 660
Net cash provided by investing activities 31.523 22,893 3 660
Net mcrease {decrease) m cash
and cash cquivalents (454,287 149,211 74,900 (76,885)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,430,504 3,281,293 83.815 160,700
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year § 2976217 B 3430504 S§ 158715 § 83 815
{continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Comparative Statement of Cash Flows

Proprictary Funds (Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in current assets and habilities:

(Increase) decreasc in accounts receivable
{Increase) decrease i other recevables
(Increase) decrease in nventory
(Increase) decrease i due from other funds
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries payable
Increase (decrease) in other accrued labilities
Increase {decrease) in due to other funds
Increasc (decrcase) in OPEB obligations
Increase (decrease) in pension obligations

Net cash provided (used) by

operating activitics

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents per
statement of cash flows to the balance sheet:

Cash and cash cquivalents, beginning of vear -
Cash and interest-bearing deposits - unrestricted
Cash and interesi-bearing deposits - resiricted

Total cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year -
Cash and interest-bearing deposits - unresiricted
Cash and interest-bearing deposits - restricted
Total cash and cash cquivalents

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

2019 2018 2019 2018
$ 6,799,993 S 3,883,119 S 86,768 $ (146,852)
1,182,330 1,175,400 . .
(1,397 135,519 - -
- - 34,393 99,579
2,066 (9,729) - -
- - - (60,000)
(22,941) (34,338) (46,576) 29,728
3,642 (874) - -
(253) (13,213) - -
. 15,000 . .
(2,211,696) 288,193 - -
(127.720) 459,931 - -
$ 5624024 $ 5899008 § 74585 (77.545)
$ 2,452,491 § 2,318,004 S 83,815 160,700
978,013 963,289 - -
3.430.504 3.281.293 83.815 160.700
1,977,297 2,452,491 158,715 83,815
998,920 978.013 - -
2,976,217 3,430,504 158,715 83.815
S (454287) S 149211 S 74900 (76.885)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.



NOTE 1

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statcments

SUMMARY OF SIGNITTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICILES

The accompanying financial statements of the City of Abbeville (City) have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to
governmenial units. GAAP includes all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) pronouncements. The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant
accounting policies are discussed in subsequeni subsections of this nole.

Financial Reporting Entity

The City was incorporated on March 13, 1850, by a special charter and operates under a
Mayor-Council form of government. The financial reporting entity consisis of (a) the
primary government, (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially
accountable, and (c¢) other organizations for which the primary government is not
accountable, but for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government arc such that exclusion would causc the reporting entity's financial statements to
be misleading or incomplete. Component units are legally separate organizations for which
the elected officials of the primary governmeni are financially accountable. In addition,
component units can be other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
cntity's financial statements fo be mislcading or incomplete.

These financial statements present only the financial activity of the City of Abbeville, the
primary government. They do not include the data of the component units necessary for

reporting in conformity with generally accepled accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWTES)

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the City of
Abbeville, the primary government, as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting
entity, except fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between governmental and
business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
infergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-lype activilies are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. The
City’s internal service funds are a governmental activity. Internal service fund activity is
eliminated to avoid “doubling up” revenues and expenses.
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NOTE 1

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The statement of activilies presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for the business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City’s
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program
revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services
offered by the programs, and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified
as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a separate set of self-balancing accounis. Fund
accounting scgregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid
management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual
provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and
managerial requirements. Fund financial statements report detailed information about the

City.

The various funds of the City are classified into two categorics: governmental and
proprietary. The emphasis on fund financial statements is on major governmental and
enterprise funds, cach displayed in a separate column. A fund is considered major if it is the
primary operating fund of the City or meets the following criteria:

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding
total for all funds of that caiegory or tvpe; and

b. Total assets, Habilities, revenues, or expendilures’expenses of the individual
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding
total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined

The major funds of the City are described below:

Governmental Funds -

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Sales Tax special revenue fund accounts for the proceeds of a one and one-quarter
percent sales and use tax that is legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Additionally, the Cily reports the following fund types:
Special revenue funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than expendable ftrusis or major capital projects) that are legally resiricted to
expenditures for specific purposes.

Debt service funds

Debi service funds are used to accouni for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital projects funds

Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilitics (other than those financed by
proprietary funds and trust funds).

Proprictary Funds -

Proprictary funds are used to account for ongoing organizations and activities that are
similar to those often found in the private sector. The measurement focus is based upon
determination of nel income, financial posilion, and cash [lows. The following are ihe
City’s proprietary fund types:

Enterprise funds

Enterprise [unds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operaied
in a manner similar to private business enterprises ~ where the intent of the governing
body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is
appropriate  for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes. The City’s enterprise fund is the Utility Fund.

Internal service funds
Iniernal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency ito other departments or agencies of the

governmental unit, or o other governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.
The City’s internal service fund is the Employce Health Insurance Fund.
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NOTE 1

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “which” transactions are recorded within the
various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded
regardiess of the measurement focus applied.

Measurement Focus

On the government-wide statement of net position and the statement of activities, both
governmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus as delined in tlem b. below.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the
“economic resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate:

a.  All governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement focus.
Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance
sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable
financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their
measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

b. The proprictary fund utilizes an “economic resources” measurement focus. The
accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating
income, changes in nel posilion (or cosl recovery), financial position, and cash flows.
All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurent) associated with their
activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position.

Basis of Accounting

In the govermnment-wide statement of net position and statement of activities, both
governmental and business-type activitics are presented using the accrual basis of accouniing.
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revemues are recognized when eamed and expenses are
recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains,
losses, asscls, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like fransactions are
recognmzed when the exchange takes place.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modificd accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when thev are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafier to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if
thev are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures
(including capital outlay) gencrally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures are recorded only when payvment is due.
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NOTE 1

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
The proprietary fund utilizes the accrual basis of accounling. Under the accrual basis of

accounting, revenues are recognized when ecarned and expenses are recorded when the
Hability is incurred or economic asset used.

Program revenues
Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities are derived directly from the
program itself or from parties outside the City’s taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole, program

revenues reduce the cost of the function to be financed from the City’s general revenues.

Allocation ol indirect expenses

The City reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect expenses of other
functions arc not allocated to those functions, but arc reported separaicly in the Statement of
Activities. Depreciation expense is specifically identified by function and is included in the
direct expense of each function. Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect
expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities

Asscts, Liabilitics and Equity

Cash and interest-bearing deposits

For purposes of the Statement of Net Position, cash and interest-bearing deposits include
all demand accounts, savings accounts, and certificates of deposits of the City. For the
purpose of the proprietary fund statement of cash flows, “cash and cash equivalents”
include all demand and savings accounts, and certificates of deposit or shori-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Investments

Under state law the City may deposit funds with a fiscal agent organized under the laws
of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the union, or the laws of the
United Stales. The City may invest in United Stlates bonds, treasury notes and bills,
government backed agency securities, or certificates and time deposits of state banks
organized under Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana.

Interfund receivables and payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds
that may resulf in amounis owed between funds. Those related {o goods and services tvpe
transactions are classified as “due to and from other funds.” Short-term interfund loans
arc reported as “interfund reccivables and pavables.” Long-term interfund loans
(noncurrent portion) are reported as “advances from and to other funds.” Interfund
receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in
the Statement of Net Position.
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at vear-end
and not yvet received. Major receivable balances for the governmental aciivities include ad
valorem and sales and use taxes. Business-type activities report customer’s utility service
receivables as their major receivables. Uncollectible ad valorem faxes or utilitv service
receivables are recognized as bad debts at the time information becomes available which
would indicate the uncollectibility of the particular receivable.

Accounts reccivable is stated at cost, net of any allowance for doubtful accounts. The
City maintains allowances for doubiful accounts for estimated losses resulling from ihe
faiture of customers to make required pavments. The City reviews the accounts
receivable on a periodic basis and makes allowances where there is doubt as io the
collectability of individual balances. In evaluating the collectability of individual
receivable balances, the City considers many factors, including the age of the balance, the
customer’s payment history, its current credit-worthiness and current economic trends.
Based on the management’s evaluation of cach customer, the City considers all
remaining accounts receivable to be fully collectible and, therefore, did not provide for an
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond December 31,
2019, are recorded as prepaid ilems.

Inventories

Inventory of the Utility Fund consists of supplies and parts that are valued at weighted
average cost. Inventory of the General Fund consists of gas, diesel and oil, al the motor
pool barn, that is valued at weighted average cost.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plani, equipment, and infrastruclure assets, are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
governmeni-wide financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at hisiorical cost or
estimated cost if historical is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets
at their cstimated fair market valuc at the date of donation. The Citv maintains a
threshold level of $1,000 for capitalizing capital assets.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Prior to January 1, 2003, governmental
funds’ infrastructurc assets were not capitalized. Thesc asscts have been valued at
estimated historical cost.



CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the
statement of activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net
position. Depreciation is provided over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the
straighi-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset
is as follows:

Buildings 443-50 years
Equipment 5-10 vears
Utility system and improvements 5-40 years
Infrastructure 20-50 years

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition.
Capital assets used in proprictary fund operations are accounted for the same as in the
government-wide statcments.

Restricted Assels

Restricted assets include cash and interest-bearing deposits of the proprietary fund that
arc legally restricted as to their use. The restricted assets arc related to the utility system
customer’s meter deposits and, when applicable, certain bond proceeds designated for
clectric, water and sewer system improvements.

Compensaled Absences

All employvees in the classified service shall receive one day of sick leave for each
calendar month of service up o a maximum of 180 days. On December 31 of cach year
the unused accumulated sick leave earned by an employee shall be carried forward to the
succeeding vear. All accumulated sick leave shall be forfeited upon termination of
employment, except in the case of retirement. Retirees are compensated for any unused
sick lcave at the hourly rate being carnced by the employce at retirement.

For all employees, up to 1/3 of the earned, but unused, vacation leave shall be credited to
the emplovee’s sick leave account. Any remaining vacation leave shall be carried to the
following year. Upon iermination of employment, the employee shall be paid for unused
vacation. In case of death of the emplovee, unused vacation shall be paid to the
bencficiary of the employee.

For fund financial statements, earned vacation leave and accumulated sick leave that is
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as an
expenditure and a curvent fund liability of the fund that will pay it. In the government-
wide statements, amounts of vested or accumulated sick leave that arc not expected to be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources are recorded as noncurrent
lLiabilities.



CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Net other post-emplovment benelit obligalions

In adopting the requirements of GASB Statement No. 75, Accouniing and Financial
Reporting by Emplovers for Post  Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, during the
year ended December 31, 2019, the City recognizes the cost of post-employment
healthcare benefits in the year when employee services are received, recognizes a liability
for OPEB obligations, known as the net OPEB liability, on the Statement of Net Position,
and provides information useful in assessing potential demands on the City’s future cash
flows. Changes in the net OPEB liability will be immediately recognized as OPEB
cxpense on the Statement of Activitics or reported as defoerred inflows/outflows of
resources depending upon the nature of the change.

Long-term debt

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets arc used in
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are
reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are
reported as liabilitics in the govermment-wide statements. Long-term debt for
governmental funds is not reported as labilities in the fund financial statements. The debt
proceeds are reporied as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest
reported as expenditures. The accounting for proprietary fund long-term debt is the same
in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide statemenis.

Equity Classifications

In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in
three components:

a. Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assels including restricted
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowing that are attributable
to the acquisilion, construction, or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted net position — Consists of net assets with consirainis placed on the use
either by (1) external groups, such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments; or (2) laws through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

¢. Unresiricted net position - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”



NOTE 1

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fund Equity — Fund Financial Stalements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. GASB Statement No. 54, Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmenital Fund Tvpe Definitions, provides clearly defined
fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a
government’s fund balance more iranspareni. The following classifications describe the
relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources
can be used:

¢ Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because
thev are cither (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contraciually required
to be maintained intact. Management has classified inventory and prepaid
expenditures as being nonspendable as this ilem is not expecled o be converted
to cash.

e Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which the constraints that
have been placed on the use of resources are either:

o Ixternally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants),
graniors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or
» Imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

e Committed: This classification includes amounts that can only be used for
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action (resolution)
of the members of the City Council of Abbeville, which is the entity’s highest
level of decision-making authority. These amounts cannot be used for any other
purposes unless the Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the
same type of action that was employved when the funds were initially committed.
This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that
existing resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those
contractual requirements. The City of Abbeville did not have any committed
resources as of year end.

e Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City of
Abbeville’s intent to be used for a specific purpose but are neither resiricted nor
committed. This intent should be expressed by the City Council of Abbeville.
The City has assigned resources in the debt service funds for the pavment of
principal and interest on outstanding debt.

& Unassigned: This classification is the residual fund balance of the General Fund.
It also represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that
has not been rostricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the
General Fund.

o]
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NOTE 1

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

When [fund balance resources are available for a specific purpose in multiple
classifications, the City of Abbeville will generally use the most restrictive funds first in
the following order: restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned as they are needed.
However, the City of Abbeville reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned
resources first and to defer the use of the other classitied funds.

Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operaling revenues and expenses for proprictary [unds are those that result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods and/or services. It also includes
all revenue and expenses not related to capital and related financing, noncapital
financing, or investing activities.

Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both
governmental and business-type activities.

In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows:

Governmental Funds - By Character
Proprictary Fund - By Operating and Nonoperaling

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial
resources. Proprietary funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources.

Interfund Transfers

Permanent reallocations of resources between funds of the reporting entity are classified as
interfund transfers. For the purposes of the statement of activities, all interfund transfers
between individual governmental funds have been eliminated.

Revenue Restrictions

The City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or local
requirements. The primary restricted revenue sources include:

Revenue Source Legal Restrictions of Use
Sales tax See Note 11
Ad valorem tax (1.33 mills) City sewer facilitics

VPPJ fire prevention revenue  Construction, acquisition, improvement, and
maintenance of fire department facilitics
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NOTE 1

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial

statements.

1.

b

L

The Mayor prepares a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year and submits
it to the City Council not later than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each
fiscal year.

A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public notificd that the
proposed budget is available for public inspection. Al the same time, a public
hearing is called.

A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication
of the call for the hearing.

After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to
finalize and implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an
ordinance prior to the commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is
being adopted.

Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one depariment,
program or function to another or involving increases in expenditures resulting
from revenues exceeding amounts eslimated require the approval of the City
Council.

All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of cach fiscal year.

Budgets for the general fund and cach special revenue fund are adopted on a
basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as finally amended by the City
Council.

Use of Estimales

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accouniing
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilitics and disclosure of contingent asscts and liabilitics at the date
of the financial statements and the reporied amounts of revenues and expenditures during the
reporling period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 2

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Change in Accounling Principle

The City has adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accouniing and Financial Reporting by
Emplovers for Post  Emploviment Benefits Other Than Pensions. GASB Statement No. 75
replaces GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Implovers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions and establishes new standards for recognizing
and measuring liabilities, expense/expenditures, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred
inflows of resources regarding OPEB. The new GASB statement requires the presentation of
liability for OPEB obligations in the emplover’s financial statements.

CASH AND INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS

Under state law, the City may deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank organized under the
laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of anv other state in the Union, or the laws of the
United States. The City may invest in certificates and time deposits of state banks organized
under Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana.

At December 31, 2019, the Citv has cash and inierest-bearing deposits (book balances)
totaling 85,184,911 as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Demand deposits $ 125482 $ 16,116 $ 141,598
Money market accounis 1,983,212 2,060,101 4,043,313
Time deposits 100,000 900.000 1,000,000

$._2,208.694 $.2976 217 $5.184.911

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank]



NOTE 2

NOTE 3

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

CASH AND INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

These deposils are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits
(or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of
securilics owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the
federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent
bank. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or
custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both partics. The Citv does not have a policy for
custodial credit risk. Deposit balances (bank balances) of $5,596,018 at December 31, 2019,
are secured as follows:

Federal deposit insurance $ 1,000,000
Pledged securities (Category 3) 7.137.846
Total 8.137 846

Pledged securities in Category 3 includes uninsured or unregistered investments for which the
securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent, bui not in the
City's name. Lven though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3)
Louisiana Revised Statule 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to
advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 davs of being notified by the City that the
fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand.

RECEIVABLES

Receivables at December 31, 2019 totaling $2,563,550 consist of the following:

Other
(yeneral Sales Tax  Governmental Utility Total

Accounts $ - 8 - % - $1,180,583  $1,180,583
Unbilled utility - - - 696,146 696,146
Taxes:

Ad valorem 68,558 - 17,153 - 85,711

Sales - 390,733 - - 390,733
Franchise fees 164,292 - - - 164,292
Other 18.424 18.219 9.442 - 46,085

Totals $251.274 3408952 % 26595 $1.876729 $2 563550




NOTE 4

NOTE 5

NOTE 6

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS

Amounts due from other governmental units consisted of the following al December 31,

2019:

City Court of Abbeville for court fines and witness fees
State and local grants for airport improvements
Federal grant for LCDBG improvements

Vermilion Parish School Board for resource officer
State of .ouisiana for beer taxes

Total

RESTRICTED ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE (UTILITY FUND)
Restricted assets consisted of the following at December 31, 2019:
Customers' deposits

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2019 was as follows:

Balance

$ 4,154
36,445
54,900

2,945

5.515

$ 103959

$ 998 920

Balance

12/31/18 Additions  Deletions 12/31/19

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 898,029 % - 3% - $ 898,029
Construction in progress - 238,391 - 238,391
Other capital assets:
Buildings 4,209,940 - - 4,209,940
Infrastructure 33,499,847 995,415 - 34,495,262
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 6,102,936 253,329 46,857 6,309,408
Improvements other than buildings _ 19,844,957 915.268 - 20,760,225
Total 64,555,709 2,402,403 46,857 66,911,255
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings $ 1,683,854 § 93878 § - $ 1,777,732
Infrastructure 27,357,942 661,266 - 28,019,208
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 3,833,281 389,303 46,857 4,175,727
Improvements other than builldings _ 14,443,149 365,765 - 14.808,914
Total accumulated depreciation 47,318,226 1,510.212 46,857 48,781,581

Governmental activities,
Capital assets, net $17.237.483 § 892191 %

518129674
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NOTE 6  CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Balance Balance
12/3172018 Additions  Deletions  12/31/2019
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 70,929 § - % - % 70,929
Construclion in progress - 193,455 - 193,455
Other capital assets:
Electric system 13,114,809 - - 13,114,809
Water system 10,627,494 110,190 - 10,737,684
Sewer system 19,319,224 - - 19,319,224
Building, machinery and equipment 1.918.920 - - 1,918,920
Total 45.051.376 303.645 - 45,355,021
Less accumulated depreciation
Electric sysiem 9,622,288 321,999 - 9,944,287
Water system 7,407,671 262,391 - 7,670,062
Sewer sysiem 12,211,244 501,220 - 12,712,464
Building, machincrv and cquipment 1,557.176 96,720 - 1,653,896
Total accumulated depreciation  _ 30,798,379 1,182,330 - 31.980,709
Business-type activilies,
Capital assets, net $14.252 997  $(878.685) § - $13.374.312
Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:
(General government § 281,475
Police 105,528
Fire 255,481
Streets 785,532
Culture and recreation 82,196
Total depreciation expense $1.510.2172
Depreciation expense was charged (o business-type activitics as follows:
Electric $ 360,687
Water 291,407
Sewer 530.236
$1.182.230
NOTE7  AD VALOREM TAXES

Ad valorem taxcs attach as an enforccable lien on property as of Januarv 1 of cach year.
Taxes are levied by the City in September or October and are actually billed to taxpayers in

November. Billed taxes become delinquent on January 1 of the following vear.

The City

bills and collects its own property taxes. Property tax revenues are recognized when levied to

the extent that thev resull in current receivables.
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NOTE 9
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AD VALOREM TAXES (CONTINUED)

For the year ended December 31, 2019, taxes of 6.65 mills were levied on property with
assessed valuations totaling $64,327,895 and were dedicated as follows:

General corporate purposes
Public improvement (sewer)
Total

5.32 mills
1.33 mills
6.65 mills

Total taxes levied were $423,106. Taxes receivable at December 31, 2019 were $85,711.

ACCOUNTS, SALARIES, AND OTHER PAYABLES

‘The accounts, salaries, and other payables consisted of the following at December 31, 2019:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Accounts payable $ 184,104 S 547.303 $ 731,407
Accrued salaries 171,613 22,662 194,275
Internal service fund claims 126,738 15,000 141,738
Other Habilities 75,035 23.381 98.416
Totals $ 557490 S 608.346 $1.165.836

CHANGES IN LONG TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of governmental aclivilies bonds, business-lvpe activities bonds,
capital lease obligations, and compensated absences transactions of the City for the vear

ended December 31, 2019:

General Capital lease  Compensaled
Obligations Obligations Absences Total
Long-term debt, 12/31/2018 $3,853,000 S 46,373 £ 601,170 $4,500,543
Additions - 92,896 92,896
Retiremenis (615,000) (46,373) - (661,373)
Long-term debt, 12/31/2019 $3,238,000 $ $ 694,066 $3,932.066
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CHANGES IN LONG TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
Governmental activitics debt al December 31, 2019 is comprised of the following:

Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, due in annual installments
of $362,000 - $474,000 through March 1, 2022; bearing interest at
0.50 - 2.25 percent per annum, sccured by excess annual revenue, $ 1,382,000

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2014, due in annual installments
of $157,000 - $198,000 through Mayv 1, 2026; bearing interest at
2.33 percent per annum, secured by annual sales tax revenue. 1,293,000

Revenue Bonds, Series 2016, due in annual installments
of $12,000 - $86,000 through March 1, 2026; bearing interest at

1.00 - 2.25 percent per annum, secured by excess annual revenue. 563,000
Total § 3,238,000

The debt service requirements for these obligations are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Year Ending Bond Bond
December 31 Principal Interest
2020 $ 694,000 b 65,920
2021 714,000 50,035
2022 733,000 33,614
2023 265,000 22,239
2024 271,000 16,059
2025-2026 561,000 13,016
Total S..3.238 000 $ 200 883

NOTE 10 DMPLOYEL RETIREMENT

Plan Descriptions

The City participates in three state-administered cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement
systems, which together cover substantially all of the City's full-time emplovees: Municipal
Employees’ Retirement System (MERS), Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System
(MPERS), and Firefighters' Retivement System (FRS) of the State of T.ouisiana. These
sysiems are cosi-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans adminisiered by
separate boards of trustees. Article 10, Section 29 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the state legislature. The
syslems issue annual, publicly-available financial reports that include financial sialements
and required supplementary information for the svstems. Although separately administered
by their respective boards of trustees, these systems are established and regulated by acis of
the Louisiana Legislature with respect to membership and contribution requirements, plan
benefits, and actuarial determination of funding requircments as provided by the state
constitution.
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NOTE 10  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT (CONTINUED)

Additional disclosures with respect to GASB 68 o the City's participation in these systems
are provided below. The reports for MERS, MPERS, and FRS may be obtained at
www.mersla.com, wwwlampers.org, and wwwlafirefightersret.com respectively. The
Municipal Emplovees' Retirement System (MERS) issues a publicly available financial
report, which mayv be obtained by writing to that system at 9737 Office Park Boulevard,
Baton Rouge, LA 70809, The [nancial reporl for the Municipal Police Employees'
Retirement Svstem (MPERS) mayv be obtained by writing fo that system at 8401 United Plaza
Boulevard Suite 270, Baton Rouge, LA 70809-7017. The financial report for the Firefighters'
Retirement System (FRS) may be obtained by writing to that system at P.O. Box 94095,
Capitol Station, Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9095.

Plan Description - MERS

MERS was originally established by Act 356 of the 1954 regular session of the Legislature of
the Statc of Louisiana and is composed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B, with
separate assets and benefit provisions. All employees of the City of Abbeville are members of
Plan B. All permanent employees working at least 35 hours per week who are not covered by
another pension plan and are paid wholly or in part from municipal funds and all elected
municipal officials are eligible to participate in MERS.

Plan Description — MPERS

All full-time police department emplovees engaged in law enforcement are required to
participale in MPERS providing he or she does not have Lo pay social security and providing
he or she meets the statutory criteria. MPERS provides retirement benefits for municipal
police officers. The projections of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension
liability includes all benefits 1o be provided to current active and inaciive emplovees through
MPERS in accordance with benefit terms and any additional legal agreements to provide
benelits that are in force al the measurement daie. Benelil provisions are authorized within
Act 189 of 1973 and amended by T RS 11:2211-11:2233.

Plan Description — FRS

The Firefighters' Retirement System (FRS) is the administrator of a cosl-sharing multiple-
emplover plan. Membership in the System is a condition of employment for any full-time
firefighters who carn at least $375 per month and are employed by any municipality, parish,
or fire protection district of the State of Louisiana in addition to employees of the
Fircfighters' Retirement System. The System provides retirement bencfits for their members.
The projections of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension liability includes
all benetits to be provided to current active and inactive emplovees through the Sysiem in
accordance with benefit terms and any additional legal agreements o provide benefits that are
in force at the measurement date.
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Benefit provisions are authorized within Acl 434 of 1979 and amended by LRS 11:2251-
11:2272. The following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for
general information purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for
more complete information.

Any person who becomes an employee as defined in RS 11:2252 on and alter January 1,
1980 shall become a member as a condition of emplovment.

No person who has attained age 50or over shall become a member of the Svstem, unless the
person becomes a member biv reason of a merger or unless the System received an application
for membership before the applicant attained the age of filty. No person who has not allained
the age of 18 vears shall become a member of the System.

Any person who has retived from service under any retirement system or pension fund
maintained basicallv for public officers and cmployces of the state, its agencics or political
subdivisions, and who is receiving retirement benefits therefrom mav become a member of
this System, provided the person meets all other requirements for membership. Service credit
from the retivement system or pension plan from which the member is retired shall not be
used for reciprocal recognition of service with this System, or for any other purpose in order
to attain cligibility or increase the amount of service credit in this System.

Benefits Provided

Retirement Benelils — MERS (Plan B)

Members with ten vears of creditable service may retire at age sixty; members with thirty
vears of service may retire at any age. The monthly retirement allowance is equal o two
percent of the member’s final compensation multiplied by his vears of creditable service;
elecled officials receive an additional one-half percent of final compensation for cach year of
such elected service.

Employees whose first emplovment making them eligible for membership occurs on or after
January 1, 2013 will become members of Tier 2. Normal retirement eligibility in Tier 2 is at
age 67 with seven vears of service credit, at age 62 with ten years of service credit, or age 55
with thirty vears of service credit. Members are eligible for an actuanally reduced early
retirement at tweniy-five years of service credit. Retirement benefits are based on a 2%
accrual rate. Emplovee contributions are set by the Board of Trustees within a range of 4% to
6%.

Final compensation is the employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined
months that produce the highest average for a member whose first employment made him or
her eligible for membership in the system on or before June 30, 2006. Final compensation is
the employee's average salarv over the 60 consecutive or joined months that produce the
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highest average for a member whose [first employmenl made him or her eligible for
membership in the system after June 30, 2006. Emplovees who terminate with at least the
amount of creditable service stated above, and do not withdraw their emplovee contributions,
may refire al the ages specificd above and receive the benefit accrued to their date of
termination.

Retirement Benefits — MPERS

Members of MPERS with membership beginning prior to January 1, 2013 are eligible for
regular retirvement after he or she has been a member of MPLERS and has 25 years of
credilable service at any age or has 20 years of creditable service and is age 50 or has 12
vears of creditable service and is age 55. A member is eligible for early retirement after he or
she has been a member of MPERS for 20 vears of creditable service at any age with an
actuarially reduced benefit. Members are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for
life, cqual to three and one-third percent (3.33%) of the member's final compensation
{emplovee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest
average) multiplied by the member's years of creditable service.

Members of MPERS with membership beginning on or after January 1, 2013 are eligible for
regular retirement, carly retirement, disabilitv and survivor benefits based on Hazardous Duty
and Non-Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under the Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is
cligible for regular retirement afier he or she has been a member of MPERS and has 25 years
of creditable service at any age or has 12 vears of creditable service at age 55, Under the
Non-Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he or she has
been a member of MPERS and has 30 vears of creditable service at any age, 25 vears of
creditable service at age 55 or 10 vears of creditable service at age 60. Under both sub plans,
a member is eligible for carly retirement afier he or she has been a member of MPERS for 20
vears of creditable service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit from age 55.

Under the Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are three percent
and two and a half perceni, respectively, of average final compensation {(average monthly
earnings during the highest 60 consecutive months or joined months if service was
interrupted) per number of vears of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary.

In 1999, the State Ilegislatwre authorized MPERS to establish an Initial Benefit Option
program. This is available to MPERS members who are eligible for regular retirement but
have not participated in DROP. This program provides both a one-time single sum payment
of up to 36 months of the regular monthly rotircment benefit, plus a reduced monthly
retirement benefit for life.

Retirement Benefits - FRS

All full-time firefighters for the City who arc engaged in fire protection are cligible to
participate in FRS. A member who has completed 20 vears of creditable service, has been a
member at least 1 year, and has reached the age of 50 is eligible for retirement. A member
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wilh at least 12 vyears of service who has reached the age of 55 is eligible for retirement
provided he has been a member for at least 1 year. Upon retirement the benefit amount is 3-
1/3 percent of average final compensation multiplied by years of creditable service, not to
exceed his average final compensation. Average final compensation is the member’s average
anmual eared compensation for any period of 36 successive or joined months of service that
produces the highest average. The system also provides death and disability benelits. Benefits
are established by state statute.

Deferred Retirement Option

In licu of lerminating emplovment and accepling a service retirement allowance, any member
of MERS who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option
plan (DROP) for up to three years and defer the receipt of benefits. A MERS member may
participate in DROP only once. During participation in the plan, emplover contributions are
payable but cmplovee contributions ccase. The monthly retirement benefits that would be
payable, had the person elected to cease emplovment, are credited to the MERS member's
individual DROP account. Interest is carned when the member has completed DROP
participation. Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the participation
period, the member may receive a lump sum from the account or a true annuity based on the
account balance. If cmployment is not terminated at the ond of the three ycar DROP
participation period, payvments into the DROP account cease and the person resumes active
coniributing membership in MERS.

A member of MPERS is eligible to enter DROP when he or she is eligible for regular
retirement based on the members’ sub plan participation. At the entrv date into DROP,
emplovee and emplover contributions cease. The amount deposited into the DROP account
for MPERS members is equal to the benefit compuied under the retirement plan elected by
participant date of application. Interest is eamed when the MPLERS member has completed
DROP participation.

Upon iermination of employment prior to or at the end of the participation period, the
MPERS member may receive a lump sum from the account or a true annuity based on the
account balance.

A member of FRS may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for
up o 36 months, afier completing 20 vears of creditable service and age 50 or 25 years at any
age. Upon commencement of participation in the deferred retirement option plan, employer
and cmployce contributions to the Svstem ceasc. The monthly retirement bencefit that would
have been pavable is paid into the deferred retirement option plan account. Upon termination
of employment, from the account or an annuity based on the deferred retirement opiion plan
account balance in addition to his regular monthly benefit. If employvment is not terminated at
the end of the 36 months, the participant resumes regular contributions to the System. No
payments may be made from the deferred retivement option plan account until the participant
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retires. Effective June 16, 1999, members cligible to retire who do not choose to participate in
DROP may elect to receive, at the time of retirement, an initial benefit option (IBO) in an
amount up to 36 months of benefits, with an actuarial reduction of their future benefits. Such
amounts may be withdrawn or remain in the IBO account earning inferest at the same rates as
the DROP account.

Disability Benefits

A member of MERS Plan B is eligible to retive and receive a disability benefit if he or she has
at least 10 vears of creditable service. Twenty years of creditable service are required in
order for a member to have a vested disability benefit. A disabled member receives a
normal retirement allowance if eligible under regular retirement provisions; if he is not
cligible for a normal retircment allowance., he reecives a disability benefit cqual to the
lesser of:

1. Thirty percent of his final average compensation or two percent of his final
average compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service; whichever is
greater; and

2. Two percent of his f{inal average compensation multiplied by his years of
creditable service projected to his earliest normal retirement age.

A member of MPERS is cligible to retire and reccive a disability benefit if he or she has been
certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. If the disability incurred is job-
related, there is no minimum creditable service requirement. If the disability is non-job-
related, a minimum of 10 vears of creditable service is required if the member was emploved
on or after July 1, 2008. Members of MPERS emploved prior to Julv 1, 2008 musi have a
minimum of 5 years of creditable service to be eligible to retire with disability benefits if the
disability incurred is non-job-related. The disability benefit received by a MPERS member is
equal fo three percent of his or her final average compensation muliiplied by years of
creditable service (not less than 40%, nor more than 60% of final average compensation). At
the time the disabled MPERS member reaches normal relirement age, he or she will have the
option to continue to receive the disability retirement benefit or to receive his or her vested
retirement benefit.

A member of FRS is cligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he or she has been
officially certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. Any member totally
disabled from injury in the line of duty, shall be paid, on a monthly basis, an annual pension
of 60.0% of the average final compensation being received at the time of disability. Any
member who has become disabled or incapacitated because of continued illness or as a result
of any injury rcceived, even though not in the line of duty, and who has 5 years of creditable
service, but 18 not eligible for retirement under the provisions of R. S. 11:2256 may apply for
retirement under the provisions of R. 8. 11:2258 and shall be retired on 75.0% of the
retirement salary to which he would be entifled under R. 5. 11:2256 it he were otherwise
eligible there under or 25.0% of the member’s average salary, whichever is greater.
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Any retired member or DROP plan participant who becomes disabled f[or anv reason
provided for by law shall be permitted to apply for conversion of a service retirement to a
service connected disability retirement under R. S, 11:2258(B)(1 X¢). Should a member who
is on disability relirement die and leave a surviving spouse, the surviving spouse shall receive
a benefit of 5200 per month. When the member takes disability retivement, he may, in
addition, fake an actuarially reduced benelil in which case the member’s surviving spouse
shall receive 50% of the disability benefit being paid immediately prior to the death of the
disabled retiree. If the surviving spouse remarries prior to age 33, such benefits shall cease;
however, the benefits shall resume upon subsequent divorce or death of the new spouse, and
the approval of the board of trustces.

Survivor’s Benefit

The surviving spouse of a MERS Plan B member who was eligible for normal retirement
at the time of death receives an automatic option two benefit. The surviving spouse of a
member with five or more years of creditable scrvice and not cligible for normal
relirement at the time of death receives either 30% of the member’s [inal compensation
payable to the spouse when they attain age 60 or an actuarial equivalent of 30% of the
deceased member’s final compensation, but not less than 15% of such final
compensation. Survivor benefits are also payable to the surviving spouses of former
members who have not withdrawn their accumulated contributions and who have at least
twenty years of ereditable service. The benefits payable are the actuarial equivalent of the
Option 2 benefits that would have become payable to the surviving spouse at the time the
former member would have begun receiving deferred normal retirement benefits. had the
MERS Plan B member survived until that date, elected Option 2, and died at that time.

Survivor benefits for MPERS members are payable to the surviving spouse or swviving
minor child’children of a deceased active conlribuling member or a deceased disability
retiree. Survivor benefits are not payable to survivors of retirees receiving benefits under the
provisions of carly or normal service retirement. 'The maximum benefit for a surviving spouse
of a MPERS member is equal to the regular retivement formula, regardiess of age, but not less
than 40% or more than 60% of the deceased member's final average compensation. There s
no requiremeni for minimum years of credilable service.

If the MPERS member is killed in the line of duty, the surviving spouse shall receive a
benefit equal to 100% of the deceased member's final average compensation, less any
survivor benefits payable to a child or children. Each surviving minor child of the MPERS
member will receive a benefit equal to 10% of deceased member's final average
compensation or $200 per month, whichever is greater. Benefits for a surviving child cease
upon the child's attainment of age 18 or upon marriage, whichever occurs first. The benefit
may continue after age 18 if the child meets certain educational or disability requirements.
The surviving minor child mav reccive an increased benefit if there is no surviving spousc of
the MPERS member.
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Survivor benefits for FRS are payable to survivors of a deceased member who dies and is not
eligible for retirement as follows. If any member is killed in the line of duty and leaves a
surviving eligible spouse, the spouse is entitled to an annual benefit equal to two-thirds of the
deceased member's final compensation. If any member dies from a cause not in the line of
duty, the surviving spouse is entitled to an annual benefit equal to 3% of the deceased
member's average [inal compensation multiplied by his folal years of credilable service;
however, in no event is the annual benefit less than 40% nor more than 60% of the deceased
member's average final compensation. Children of the deceased member are entitled {o the
greater of $200 per month or 10% of average final compensation {not to exceed 100% of
average final compensation) until reaching the age of cighteen or until the age of twenty-two
if enrolled full-time in an insiitution of higher learning, unless the surviving child is
physically handicapped or mentally retarded in which case the benefit is pavable regardless of
age. If a deceased member dies leaving no surviving spouse, but at least one minor child,
each child is entitled to receive forty percent of the deceased's average final compensation,
not to cxceed an aggregate of sixty percent of average final compensation.

Cost of Living Increases

MERS is anthorized under state law to grant an annual cost of living adjustment to members
who have been retired for at least one vear. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's
original benefit and may only be granted if sufficient funds are available. The cost of living
increase must be paid from investment income in cxcess of normal requircments.

MPERS i3 authorized to provide anmual cost of living adjustments to members who have
been retired for at least one full fiscal year. The adjustment cannot exceed 3% in any given
vear. The Board is authorized to provide an additional 2% COLA, computed on the member’s
original benefit, to all regular retirees, disability, survivors, and beneficiaries who are 63
vears of age or older on the cut-off date which determines eligibility. MPERS members who
clect carly retirement are not eligible for a cost of living adjustment until they reach regular
refirement age.

The present value of future FRS retivement benefits are based on benetits currently being paid
by the Svsiem and includes previously granied cost of living increases. The present values do
not include provisions for potential future increases not yet authorized by the Board of
Trustees as they were deemed not to be subsiantively automatic.

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank]
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Contribulions

The MERS, MPERS, and FRS emplover contribution rates are established annually under
LRS 11:101-11:104 by the Public Retirement Svstems' Actuarial Committee (PRSAC),
faking into consideration the recommendation of the system's actuary. Each plan pays a
separate actuarially-determined emplover contribution rate. For January 1, 2019 through June
30, 2019, the employer contribution rates for MERS Plan B, MPERS, and FRS were 14.00%,
32.50%; and 26.50%, respectively. For July 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019, the
emplover contribution rates for MERS Plan B, MPERS, and FRS were 14.00%; 32.25%; and
27.75%, respectively. Emplover contributions to MERS, MPERS, and FRS were $311,044;
$345,395; and $433,329 respectively, for the vear ended December 31, 2019,

Employees participating in MERS are required to coniribute 5.00%; employees participaling
in MPERS are required to contribute 8.00%; emplovees participating in the FRS are required
to contribute 10.00%.

Contributions received by a pension plan from non-employer contributing entities that are not
in a special funding situation arc recorded as revenuc by the respective pension plan. MERS
receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing funds. MPERS receives insurance
premium tax monies appropriated by the legislature each year based on an actuarial study.
I'RS receives insurance premium tax monies appropriated by the legislature each vear based
on an actuarial study. The Cily of Abbeville recognizes revenue in an amount equal to its
proportionatc share of the total contributions to the pension plan from thesce non-cmployer
contributing entities. During the vear ended December 31, 2019, the City of Abbeville
recognized revenue as a result of support received from non-emplover contributing entities of
$75,589 for its participation in MIRS; §71,857 for its participation in MPERS; and $164,545
for its participation in the FRS.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

The following table reflects the City’s reported net pension liability, pension c¢xpense,
proportionate share of the net pension liability and changes in propoirtion as of December 31,

2019:
MERS MPERS RS Total
Net Pension Liabitity $2.508,058 $3,169,850 $3,843,548 $ 9,521,456

Pension (Benelit) Expense $ (131.843) §  (85,667) B (143,144) $§ (360,654)

Proportion of Net
Pension Liability 2.8670% 0.3490% 0.6138%

Change in Proportion
Increase (IDecrease) (0.106515)% (0.012976)% (0.037356)%
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 10  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT (CONTINUED)

The net pension liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2019 and the total pension liabilities
used to calculate the net pension lability were determined by actuarial valuations as of that
date. The City of Abbeville’s proportion of the net pension liability for each retirement
svstem was based on a projection of the City of Abbeville’s long-term share of coniributions
to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers,
actuarially determined.

At December 31, 2019, the City of Abbeville reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outllows of Resources

MERS MPERS FRS Total
Differences between expected and
actual experience 3 - $ 6651 % - 8 6,651
Changes in asswmplions 152,891 177,633 349,669 680,193
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan
mvestments 264,160 205,940 258,408 728,568
Changes in:
Proportion and differences between
emplover contributions and
proportionate share of:
Contributions 15,435 - 173,402 188,837
Employer contributions subsequent
to measurement date 155,656 170,764 229,485 555,909
Total $588,142 § 560,988 $1,011,028 52,160,158

Deferred Inflows of Resources

MERS MPERS FRS Total

Differences between expected and

actual experience $111,243 $ 97,522 %8 277,252 $ 486,017
Changes in assumplions - - 280 280
Changes in proportion and differences

between actual contributions and

proportionate share of contributions 62,071 153,538 534,969 750,575
Total $173,314 §251,057 & 812,501  $1,236,872
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 10  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT (CONTINUED)

During the year ended December 31, 2019, emplover contributions lotaling $155,656,
$170,764, and $229,489 were made subsequent to the measurement date for MERS, MPERS,
and FRS respectively. These contributions are reported as deferred outflows of resources and
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension lability in the year ended December 31,
2020. Other amounts reported as deferved outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as [ollows:

Year ending December 31, MERS MPERS FRS Total
2020 $ 142,219 $ 105,723 $ 3,029 $ 250,971
2021 58,830 (69,684) (143,765) (154,619)
2022 35,175 51,714 (8,360) 78,529
2023 22,948 51,414 35,984 110,346
2024 - - 40,147 40,147
2025 - - 42.003 42.003
Total $ 255172 $ 139,167 $ (30,962 $ 367,377

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabilities for MERS, MPERS, and FRS in the June 30, 2018 actuarial
valuations were determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied o all periods
included in the measurement:

MERS
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Expected remaining service ves 4 vears for Plan B
Investment rate of return 7.0% net of investment expense
Inflation rate 2.500%
7.4% (1 to 4 vears service) (including mflation and
merit)

Projected salary increases . . .
) . 4.9% (More than 4 vears service) (including

inflation and merit)
Cosl of living adjustments None

Annuitant and beneficiary Mortality - PubG-
2010(B) Healthy Retiree Table (set equal to 120%
for males and females). Emplovees Mortality -

Mortality Pub(G-2010(B) Employee Table (set equal to
120% for males and females). Disabled Lives
Mortality - PubNS-2010(B) Disabled Reiiree Table
(set equal to 120% for males and females).
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NOTE 10  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT (CONTINUED)

MPERS
Actuarial cost method Lntry Age Normal
Expected remamning service lives 4 years
Investment rate of return 7.125% net of mvestment expense
Inflation rate 2.50%
Years of Service Salarv Growth Rate
. . 1-2 9.75%
Projected salary increases 573 4.75%
24 & over 4.25%
Cost of living adjustments None

Mortality

Based on an experience study for the period July 1, 2010 -
June 30, 2014. The RP-2000 Combined Healthy with
Bhlue Collar Adjustment Sex Distinct Tables projected to
2029 by Scale AA (sct back 1 year for fomales) were
selected for annuitant and bencficiary mortality. For
employees, the RP-2000 Employee table set back 4
vearsfor males and set back 3 years for females were
selected for disabled annuitants. The RP-2000 Disabled
Lives Mortality Table (set back 5 years for males and set
back 3 years for [emales) was selected .

RS

Actuarial cost method

Expected remaining service lives
Investment rate of return
Inflation rate

Projected salary increases

Cost of living adjustments

Mortality

Eniry Age Normal

7 years

7.15% net of investment expense

2.500%

Vary from 14.75% in the first two years of service to 4.5%
afler 25 years

Onty those previously granted

The mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an
experience studv performed on plan data for the period
July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2014, The RP-2000
Combined Healthy with Blue Collar Adjustment Sex
Distinct Tables projected to 2031 using Scale AA were
slected for employee, annuitant, and beneficiary mortality.
The RP-2000 Disabled Lives Mortality Table (set back 5
vears for males and set back 3 years for females) was
selected for disabled annuitants.
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NOTE 10 DMPLOYEL RETIREMENT (CONTINUED)

The MERS and FRS actuarial assumptions used were based on the results of an experience
study for the period July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2014, The MPERS actuarial assumptions
used were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2010
through June 30, 2014.

The forecasted long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed
for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate
of return by weighting the expecied future real raies of return by the target assel allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation and an adjustment for the effect of
rebalancing/diversification. The resulting expected long-term rate of return for MERS is
7.00%, MPERS is 7.89%, and FRS is 7.94% for the vear ended June 30, 2019.

Discount Rates

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for MERS was 7.00%, MPERS
was 7.125%, and FRS was 7.150%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
contribution rates and that contributions from participating emplovers will be made at the
actuarially determined rates approved bv PRSAC taking into consideration the
recommendation of the actuary.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for cach major asset class included in the
target asset allocation for MERS, MPERS and FRS as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in
the following table:

Expected Rate of Return
Long-Term Expected

Targel Asset Portfolio Real Rate
Agset Class Allocation of Return
MERS MPERS RS MERS MPLRS RS

Fixed income 35% 33% 31% 1.51% 0.80% 2.17%
Equity 50% 49% 49% 2.15% 3.28% 6.75%
Alternatives 15% 18% 10% 0.64% 1.06% 7.33%
Real assets 0% 0% 10% 0.00% 0.00% 4.52%
Totals 100% 100% 100% 4.30% 5.14% 5.19%
Inflation 2.70% 2.75% 2.75%
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Retum 7.00% 7.89% 7.94%




CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 10  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT (CONTINUED)

Based on those assumpiions, the net position of MERS, MPERS, and FRS were projecled to
be available to make all projected futwe benefit pavments of cuirent plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan nvestments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit pavments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivily of the Emplover’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in
the Discount Rate

The following table presents the City of Abbeville’s proportionate share of the net pension
hability using the discount rate of 7.000% for MERS, 7.125% for MPERS, and 7.150% for
FES as well as whal the City of Abbeville’s proportionale share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower
(6.000% for MERS, 6.125% for MPERS, and 6.150% for FRS) or one percentage-point

higher (8.00% for MERS, 8.125% for MPERS, and 8.150% for FRS) than the current rate:
Current
19 Decrease Discount Rale 19% Increase
MERS N 3,342,595 N 2,508,058 $ 1,802,264
MPERS 4,416,645 3,169,850 2,123,913
FRS 5,565,717 3,843,548 2,398,090
Total § 13324 957 Ky 9. 521 456 5 6.324 267

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plans’ fiduciarv net position is available in the
separately issued financial veports for MERS, MPERS and 'RS and can be obtained on the
plans’ respective websiles or on the Louisiana Legislative Auditor’s website: www . lala.gov.

Pavables to the Pension Plan

At December 31, 2019, pavables to MERS, MPERS, and FRS were $23,994, 525,501, and
$38,799, respeciively for employee and employer legallv-required contributions.

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank]
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NOTE 13

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

DEDICATION OF PROCEEDS - SALES AND USE TAX

The proceeds of the One and One Quarter percent sales and use tax levied by the City are
dedicated for the following purposes:

One half of one percent sales and use tax (2019 - §1,413,336; 2018 - $1,433,325) for opening,
constructing, paving, resurfacing and improving sireets, alleys, sidewalks, sewers, lighting
and powcer plants; constructing and improving draing, drainage canals and sub-surface
drainage; constiucting and purchasing fire department stations and equipment; constructing
and purchasing police department stations and equipment; constructing and purchasing
garbage disposal and health and sanitation equipment and [acilitics; consirucling public
buildings; purchasing, constructing and improving public parks and recreational facilities and
acquiring the necessary equipment and fornishings therefore; purchasing equipment for civil
defense; constructing, acquiring or improving any work of permancnt public improvement;
and purchasing and acquiring all equipment and furnishing for the public works buildings
improvements and facilities in the City.

One half of one percent sales and use tax (2019 - $1,413,336; 2018 ~ $1,433,325) for paying a
portion of the salaries and benefits of City employees.

One quarter of one percent sales and use tax (2019 — 8706,668; 2018 — $716,663) shall be
altocated periodically for the purpose of increasing the salaries for public safety employees of
the City.

One half of one percent sales and use tax (2019 $223,383;) effective November 2019 shall
be allocated periodically for the purpose of increasing the salaries of City employees.

SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE ENTERPRISE FUND

The City maintains one enterprise fund with three departments that provide electricity, water,
and sewerage services. Segment information for the vear ended December 31, 2019 follows:

Eleciric Water Sewerage ‘Total
Operating revenues $13.106.543 $1.856.895 $1.840,597 $16.804,035
Operating expenses:
Depreciation 360,687 291,407 530,236 1,182,330
Other 7.376,789 674,517 770,406 8.821.712
Total operaling
expenses 7.737.476 965.924 1,300,642 10,004,042

Operating income (loss) £ 5.369.067 $ 890,971 $ 539,955 S 6,799,993

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

The City has established a partially self-funded internal service fund to accumulate monies
for the payment of health care claims of the City emplovees and their dependents. An infegral
part of this self-funded health insurance program is the procurement of both specific and
aggregale Stop-Loss insurance. The Cilv’s self-insured retention is $75,000 per covered
individual.
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NOTE 14 COMPENSATION OF CITY OFFICIALS

NOTE 15

A detail of compensalion paid o the Mayor and Council for the year ended December 31,
2019 follows:

Mark Piazza, Mavor $ 67,000
Francis Plaisance, Councilman-at-large 16,725
Rostvn White, Councilman 15,400
Terry Broussard, Councilman 15,400
R. Brady Broussard, Jr., Councilman 15,400
Trancis Touchet, Councilman 15,400

POSTEMPLOYMENT IIEALTII CARE AND LII'E INSURANCE BENEITTS
General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan description — The City of Abbeville (the City) provides certain continuing health care
and life insurance benefits for its retired emplovees. The City of Abbeville’s OPEB Plan (the
OPEB Plan) is a single-emplover defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the City. The
authority to establish and/or amend the obligation of the emplover, emplovees and retirees
rests with the City. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in
Governmental  Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Section P32
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions—Reporting For Benefits Not Provided
Through Trusts That Meet Specified Criteria—Defined Benefit.

Benefits Provided — Medical and life insurance benefits are provided through comprehensive
plans and are made available to employees upon actual retirement. Employees retirement
eligibility (ID.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: Employees are covered by the
Municipal Emplovees’ Retirement System (MERS), or MPERS for Police, or FRS for
Firefighters. MERS: Attainment of age 60 and 10 vears of service; or, any age and 25 years
of service; employees hired on and after January 1, 2013 are not able to retire or enter DROP
unlil age 67 with 7 years of service; or, age 62 with 10 years of service; or, age 55 with 30
vears of service. MPERS and FRS: Attainment of age 55 with 12 vears of service; or, age 50
with 20 vears of service; or, any age and 25 years of service. Employees are assumed to delay
retirement until 25 vears for civil service emplovees, 20 vyears for non-civil service
emplovees, and 10 vears for elected officials, also subject to 3 vear assumption of DROP
parlicipalion.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS
(CONTINUED)
Life insurance coverage is provided to retirees and 100% of the blended rate (active and
retired) is paid by the emplover. An amount of either $23,000 or $12,500 amount of

insurance coverage while active is provided afier retirement.

Emplovees covered by benefif terms — Al December 31, 2019, the following employees were
covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit pavments 45
Inactive emplovees entitled to but not yet recetving benefit payvments -
Active employees 145

190
Total OPEB Liability

The City’s total OPEB liability of $19,664,593 was measured as of December 31, 2019 and
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial dssumptions and other inpuis — The total OPEB liability in the December 31,
2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assomptions and other
inputs, applicd to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specificd:

Inltation 2.5%

Salary incrcases 3.0%, including inflation

Discount rate 4.10% annually (Beginning of Year to Determing ADC)
2.74%, annually (As of End of Year Measurement Daic)

Iealthcare cost trend rates 5.5% annually

The discount rate was based on the average of the Bond Buyers' 20 Year General Obligation
municipal bond index as of December 31, 2019, the end of the applicable measurement
period.

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Table without projection with 50%¢/50%
unisex blend.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2019 valuation were based on the

results of ongoing evaluations of the assumptions [rom January 1, 2009 to December 31,
2019.
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(CONTINUED)

Changes in the Total OPEB Iiability

Balance at December 31, 2018 §27,815,789
Changes for the vear:
Service cost 296,133
Interest 1,146,518
Differences belween expected and aclual experience 1,548,248
Changes in assumptions (1,101,763)
Changes in benefit terms (9,517.341)
Benefit pavments and net transfors (522,991
Net changes (8,151,196}
Balance at December 31, 2019 $19.664.593

Sensitivity of the total OPER liability to changes in the discount rate  The following
presents the total OPED liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPED Liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I-percenlage-point lower (1.74%)
or 1-percentage-point higher (3.74%) than the current discount rate:

1.0% Current 1.0% Increase
{1.74%) {2.74%) {3.74%)
Total OPEB hability $22.589.891 $19.664.593 $17.279.803

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank
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(CONTINUED)

Sensitvity of the total OPER liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates — The
following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total
OPEB lLiability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-
percentage-point lower (4.5%) or l-percentage-point higher (6.5%) than the current
healthcare trend rates:

1.0% Current 1.0% Increase
{4.5%) {5.5%) {6.5%)
Total OPEB hability _$17.410.832 _$19.664.593 $§22.402.119

OPLB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deterred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPER

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the City recognized OPEB bencfit of $8,323,794.
At December 31, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Qutflows of Inflows of
Kesources Kesources
Differences between expected and actual experisnce $ 1,419.228 8 34.653
Changes n assumptions - 3,724,719
Total $ 1419228 S 4.159.372

Amounts reported as delerred outflows of resources and delerred inflows of resources
related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as {ollows:

Years ending December 31:

2020 249,104
2021 249,104
2022 249,104
2023 249,104
2024 249,104
Thereatter 1,494,624
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CONTRACT FOR ELECTRIC POWER ENTERPRISE FUND

The City has entered into an agreement with Exelon Generation Company, LLC for electric
power supply service. This agreement is effective [rom June 1, 2018 through May 31, 2021.

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

On April 26, 2017, the City of Abbeville entered info a capital Icase agreement with Ford
Motor Credit for the acquisition of (5) Police Units. The capital lease required three annual
payments of $48,924 and was paid out during the year ended December 31, 2019,
INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers consist of the following at December 31, 2019:

Transfers In Transfers Out
Governmental funds:

General fund $ 7,993,525 3 -
Special revenue funds:
Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund - 2,896,901
Public Improvement - Sewer Fund - 88,563
Maintenance and Operation - Fire Department Fund - 87,582
Debt service funds:
2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds Fund 477,557 -
2014 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Fund 202,098 -
2016 Revenue Bonds Fund 77,186 -
Capital projects funds:
Adrport Improvement Fund 45,072 -
LCDBG Street Improvement 104,704 -
Total governmental funds 8,900,142 3,073,046
Proprietary funds:
Enterprisc Fund 384,972 6,212,068
Total $ 9285114 $ 9285114

Transters are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that siatute or budget requires to
collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and to (b) use
unrestricted revenues collected to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in
accordance with budgetarv authorizations.
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COMPENSATION, BENEFITS AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO MAYOR

A detail of compensaiion, benelits, and other pavments made (o Mayor, Mark Piazza for the
vear ended December 31, 2019 follows:
Mark Piazza, Mavor

Purpose Amount

Salary $ 67,000
Benefits - Health insurance 8,704
Benefits - Retirement 9128
Vehicle Provided by Government 100

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Liticalion

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of some of these lawsuits
has been determined, as of the date of this audit report, the City has not appropriated any
funds in payment of these liabilitics. There are also pending lawsuits which mayv result in
judgments against the City. As of December 31, 2019, the amounts, if any, resulting from the
settlement of these pending claims could not be reasonably determined by management and
tegal counsel.

Grant Audits

The City receives federal and siate grants for specific purposes that are subject o review and
audit by federal and state agencies. Such audits could result in a request for reimbursement
by these agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms and conditions of the
appropriate agency. In the opinion of Citv management, such disallowances, it any, will not
be significant to the City’s financial statements.

LUtility Relocation Grants

In prior years, the City utilized federal funding under Act 319 to pay its share of the cost to
relocate electric, water, and sewer facilities to accommodate the expansion of Highway 14.
As part of the funding agreement the City is prohibited from locating additional longitudinal
facilities within any right-of-way owned by the State of Louisiana until the City reimburses
the Department of Transportaiion the full amount of costs expended on the City’s behalf,
which totaled $590,359.
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NOTE 22
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PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The net position of the Governmental Activiiies and Business-Type Activilies has been
adjusted due to the correction of actuarial assumptions relating to the adoption of the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benetits Other Than Pensions, in the year ended December 31, 2019,

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
Net Position, December 31, 2018 $(12,800,476) $ 9,951,656
Deferred inflows related to OBEB (2.576,800) (858,933)
Net Position, December 31, 2018, as restated $(15377.2763 $ 9092723

SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

We have evaluated events subsequent to the balance sheet date through July 8, 2020, the date
the financial statements were available to be issued.

In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) was reported to have surfaced
in China. The World Health Organization has characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic. The
COVID-19 outbreak is disrupting supply chains and affecting production and sales across a
range of industrics. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on our operational and financial
performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the
outbreak, impact on our resources, employees and vendors all of which are uncertain and
cannot be predicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact our financial
condition or results of operations is uncertain.
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
General Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended December 31, 2019
With Comparative Actual Amounis for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

2019
Variance ~
Budget Positive 2018
Oniginal Final Actual {Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes $ 362,000 5 367000 % 369,567 & 2,567 % 368,956
Licenses and permits 584,000 581,000 584,714 3,714 593,174
Intergovernmental 239,000 261,000 237,286 (23,714) 186,164
Fines and forfeitures 125,000 65,000 60,243 (4,757) 93,650
Miscellancous 470,000 566,000 539,207 (6,793) 558,093
Total revenues 1,780,000 1.840.000 1.811.017 (28.983%) 1.800.037
Expenditures:
Current -
General government 1,778,000 1,823,000 1,832,723 (9,723) 1,779,067
Public safety:
Police 3,150,000 3,013,000 3,027,537 14,537y 2,979,710
Fire 3,225,000 3,300,000 3,359,799 {59,799y 3,158,158
Highways and streets 1,110,000 1,146,000 1,145,928 72 1,123,609
Culture and recreation 415,000 437,000 445,933 (8,933) 396,027
Capital outlay 472,000 690.000 762,907 {72,907 208,662
Total expenditures 10.150.000 10409000  10.574.827 (165.827) _9.645233
Deficiency of revenues
over expenditures {8,370,000) (8,569.000) (8.763.810) (194.810)y (7.845,196)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 8,008,000 7,841,000 8,011,553 170,553 7,842,466
Transfers out - - (18.028) (18.028) -

Total other financing sources (uses) _8,008.000 7.841.000 7.993.525 152,525

FExcess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over expenditures and

7.842.466

other financing uscs {362,000) (728,000) (770,285) (42,285 (2,730)
Fund balance, beginning 1,087,969 1,087.969 1.087.969 - 1,090,699
Fund balance, ending $ 725969 & 359969 § 317684 $(42.285) $1.087.969
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
Sales Tax T'und

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended December 31, 2019

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Revenues:
Sales tax
Intergovernmental - state and local
Miscellaneous - mterest and other
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current -
General government
Public safety:
Police
Fire
Highways and streets
Culture and recreation
Capttal outlay
Debt service -
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers m -
Transfers out -
General Fund -
Salaries
Retrement
Health insurance
Capital outlay and other costs
Debt Service T'und
Ttility Fund -
Retirement
Health msurance
Capital outlay and other costs

Total other financmyg sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over expenditures

and other financing uses
Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

2019
Variance -

Budget Positive 2018

Original Final Actual {Negative) Actual
$3,575,000  $3,720,000 83,756,727  § 36,727  $3,583,313
18,000 45,000 25,000 (20.000) 86,053
2.000 10,000 11.378 1.378 12.597
3,395,000 3.775.000 3,793,105 18,105 3.681.963
10,000 15,000 8,242 6,758 24,756
41,000 36,000 16,594 19,406 20,568
40,000 45,000 34 674 10,326 23,312
208,000 230,000 184,489 45,511 191,234
10,000 10,000 7,956 2.044 6,895
352,000 519,000 416,105 102,895 549.156
46,000 46,000 46,373 (373) 43,956
3,000 3.000 2.551 449 4968
710.000 904,000 716984 187.016 864,845
2,885,000 2.871.000 3.076.121 205,121 2,817,118
- 20,000 20.000 - -

{(715,000) (710,000) (702,000) 8,000 {718,000
(545,000) {527,000) (533.899) {6,899) (543,862)

(593.000)  (593,000)  (592.800) 200 (592.800)

- - (73.971)  (73.97D) -
(614,000)  (669,500)  (669.259) 241 (613,824)
(105.000) (98.000)  (104317)  (6.317)  (103.238)
(187.000)  (187,000)  (187,200) (200 (187.200)
(285.000) (25.000) (53.455) _(28.435) _ (190,314)
(3.044,000)  (2.789.500) (2.896.901) (107.401) (2.949.238)
(159.000) 81,500 179,220 97,720 (132.120)
1,106,743 _1,106.743  _1.106.743 . 1238363
$ 947743 $L188.243 $1.285963 $97.720 81106743
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
POST RETIREMENT BENLEFITS

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Iiability
and Related Ratios
Year Ended December 31, 2019

‘Total OPER Liability 2018 2019
Service cost $ 378,008 $ 296,133
Interest 1,061,073 1,146,518
Changes of benefit terms - (9,517,341)
Differences between expected and actual experience (513,681) 1,548,248
Changes of assumptions (3,208,364) (1,101,763)
Bencfit payments (557,384) (522,991)
Net change in total OPEB liability (2,840,348) (8,151,196)
Total OPER lability - beginning 30,656,137 27,815,789
Total OPEB Hability - ending $ 27.815,789 $ 19,664,593

Covered employee pavroll $ 4,503,826 $ 4,638,941

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered cmployce payroll 617.60% 423.90%

Notes to Schedule:
Benefit change: None None

Changes of Assumptions:
Discount Rate: 4.10% 2.74%

This schedule is mtended to show information for 10 vears. Additional vears will be displayed
as thev become available.
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
EMPLOYLE RETIREMENT

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

Year Ended December 31, 2019

Share of the net  Plan fiduciary net

Proportion Proportionate pension liability position as a
of the net share of the Covered as a percentage  percentage of the
Fiscal pension net pension employee of its covered total pension
Year Liability lability payroll employee pavroll Liability
Municipal Emplovees' Retirement System
2019 2.86696% $ 2,508,058 § 2,205,125 113.74% 66.14%
2018 2.97348% $ 2515062 § 2212271 113.69% 65.60%
2017 3.02570% $ 2,617,937 § 2,097,862 124.79% 63.49%
2016 2.92099% $ 2,421,235 % 1,962,066 123.40% 63.30%
2015 2.93837% $ 1,997,053 § 2,001,427 99.78% 68.71%
Municipal Police Employees' Relirement Sysiem
2019 0.34904% $ 3,169,850 § 1,066,921 297.10% 71.01%
2018 0.36201% $ 3,060,488 % 926,323 33(.39% 71.89%
2017 0.38059% $ 3,322,738 § 997,410 333.14% 70.08%
2016 0.38315% $ 3,591,195  § 969,480 370.42% 66.00%
2015 0.40739% $ 3,191,490 § 1,063,951 299.97% 70.73%
Firefighters’ Retirement System
2019 0.61380% $ 3,843,548 §$ 1,596,195 240.79% 73.96%
2018 0.57644% $ 3315739 § 1,428,739 232.07% 74.76%
2017 0.58083% $ 3,329,241 § 1,309,980 254.14% 73.55%
2016 0.68091% $ 4,453,793  § 1,471,020 302.77% 68.20%
2015 (.75836% $ 4,092,960 § 1,544,795 264.95% 72.45%

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 vears. Additional vears will be displaved as thev
become available.
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
EMPLOYLE RETIREMENT

Schedule of Contributions
Year Ended December 31, 2019

Contributions Contributions as
relative to a percentage of
Statutorily statutorily Contribution Covered covered
Fiscal required required deficency employee employee
Year contribution contribution (cxcess) pavroll pavroll

Municipal Employees' Retirement System

2019 $ 309,718 § 311,044 8 (1,326) 8 2,205,125 14.1%
2018 s 301,384 % 303,643 § (2,259 § 2,212,271 13.7%
2017 S 257,211 $ 256,915 8 29 8§ 2,097,862 12.2%
2016 S 203,877 % 222,341 8 (18,464 § 1,962,066 11.3%
2015 $ 190,136  $ 190,136 § - 8 2,001,427 9.5%
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System
2019 S 299910 § 345395 S (45,485) S 1,066,921 32.4%
2018 S 291,872 § 350,087 8 (58,215 § 926,323 37.8%
2017 $ 321,988 % 334,457 § (12,469) § 997,410 33.5%
2016 s 343,269 § 352,248  § (8,979 § 969,480 36.3%
2015 S 324,732 § 324,732 8 - 8 1,063,951 30.5%
Firefighters' Retirement System
2019 $ 401,834 § 433329 % (31,495) S 1,596,195 27.1%
2018 s 407,191 378,616 8§ 28,575 & 1,428,739 26.5%
2017 S 365,154  § 338,955 & 26,199  § 1,309,980 25.9%
2016 S 418,372 % 386,775 8§ 31,597 8§ 1,471,020 26.3%
2015 8 451,853 % 451,853 % - S 1,544,795 29.3%

*Amounts presented were determined as of the end of the fiscal year.

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 vears. Additional years will be displaved as they
become available.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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General Fund

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Revenues
Year Ended December 31, 2019
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Taxes:
Ad valorem
Housing authority payment in
lieu of taxes
Cham store
Total taxes

Licenses and permits:
Occupational licenses
Beer and liquor heenses
Building and other permits
Total licenses and permits

Intergovernmental:

Vermilion Parish Police
Jury/School Board -
Fire insurance tax
Resource officer

State of Lousiana -
Beer taxes
State grants

Federal -
FEMA
Police department grants

Total ntergovernmental

Fines and fortetures

Miscellaneous:
Rental mcome
Franchise fees - Reliant
Franchise fees - Cable TV
Franchise fees - Bell South
Franchise fees - La Competitive
Franchise {ees - Entergy
Interest income
Witness fees
Youth recreation revenues
Oil and mineral leases
Other sources

Total miscellaneous

Total revenues

2019
Variance -
Budget Favorable 2018
Origmal Final Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
$ 330,000 0§ 334000 § 338473 % 4473 § 334399
20,000 21,000 19,184 {1,816) 21,897
12000 12.000 11.910 {900 12.660
362.000 367.000 369.567 2.567 368.956
525,000 520,000 519,683 (317) 520,198
18,000 20,000 19,135 (865) 23,832
41.000 41,000 45 896 4.896 49 144
584 000 581.000 584.714 3.714 503 174
76,000 75,000 74,548 (452 -
28,000 30,000 31,550 1,550 32,346
25,000 25,000 22919 (2,081) 23414
90,000 111,000 90,557 (20,443 63,824
- - - - 28,716
20,000 20,000 17.712 {2.288) 37.864
239 000 261.000 237286 (23 714y 186.164
125.000 65,000 60,243 (4757 93 650
119,000 119,000 109,998 (9,002) 128,395
65,000 80,000 70,467 {9,533 80,514
75,000 75,000 69 345 (5,655 74,035
15,000 15,000 13,383 (1,617) 13,629
6,000 6,000 7,746 1,746 8575
38.000 38,000 38,686 686 38,483
4.000 4. 000 4.020 20 4.316
12,000 0,000 7.761 (1,239 8.962
- 4,000 3,793 (203) 4415
102,000 97,000 87,982 {9,018) 147, 401
34 000 119.000 146,024 27.024 49 368
470,000 566,000 559207 (6,793} 558.093
$1.780.000 $1.840000 $1.811.017 % (28983 $£1.800037
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
General Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Expenditures
Year Ended December 31, 2019
With Comparative Actual Amounis for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

2019
Variance -
Budget Favorable 2018
Original Final Actual (Untavorable) Actual
General government:
Administrative -

Salaries $ 358.000 $ 364,000 8 365916 3 (1.916) 8 356,753
Employees' insurance 206.000 204,000 213.741 (9,741) 193,899
Payroll taxes 32,000 32,000 32,346 (346) 31,511
Retirement 47,500 47.000 49,660 {2.660) 47,074
General insurance 32.000 40,000 42.048 (2,048) 36,078
Equipment operating 13.000 11,500 11.343 157 10,500
Tues and subscriptions 3,000 3,000 2,789 211 4219
Janttorial 15,000 12.000 11,175 825 11,815
Legal and accounting 155,000 155,000 149,007 5,993 148,430
Maintenance and repairs 14,500 14,500 14,637 (137 18,968
Other professional fees 65,000 64,000 64,532 (532) 75,515
Travel and convention 5,000 11,000 10,627 373 6,039
Office supplies 30,500 30,500 32,019 (1,519 28,006
Postage 12,500 13,500 10,500 - 10,500
Publications 25,000 28,000 28,293 (293) 31,442
Telephone 28,000 28,000 24,415 3,585 31.686
Rents 7.500 7.500 7.200 300 7,200
Ttilities 13,000 13,000 12,484 516 11,444
Employee drug testing 2,000 2.000 482 1.518 262
Election costs - - - - 19,990
Security guard 22.000 24,000 23.050 950 22,700
Main Strectirelated projects 34,000 39,000 55,002 (16,002) 40,874
Tourist welcome center 10,000 10.000 10,000 - 10,000
Drug task {orce 35.000 35,000 35.000 - 35,000
Miscellaneous 45 500 54,500 48,947 5553 48 609

Total admmistrative 1.205.000 1.240.000 1,255.213 (15.213) 1.239.514

Airport expenses -

Salaries 22,000 22.000 26,408 {4.408) 19,846
Payroll taxes 1,500 1,500 1,530 (30) 1,519
Ctilities and telephone 13,000 14,000 13,473 527 11,069
Equipment operating 5,000 5,000 3,081 1,919 3,389
Repairs and maintenance 12,000 12,000 11,734 266 15,881
Professional services 26,000 20,000 17.898 2,102 21,138
Supplies 12,000 20,000 22,333 (2,333) 14,278
Miscellaneous 1.500 10.500 4 53] 5969 1,500

Total airport 93,000 105000 100,988 4012 88,620

{continued)
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
General Fund

Budgctary Comparison Schedule — Expenditures (Continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2019
With Comparative Actual Amounis for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

2019
Variance -
Budget Favorable 2018
Qriginal Final Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
City Court -
Salaries $ 104,000 § 104000 5 101,887 § 2,113 $ 100,155
Employees' insurance 110,000 110,000 101,133 8,867 97,389
Payroll taxes 9,000 9,000 8,960 40 8,769
Retirement 24,000 28,000 28,737 (1,737) 28,092
General insurance 20,000 20,000 23,123 {3,123) 22,843
Equipment operating 7,000 5,000 4,425 575 4,514
Repair and maintenance 4,000 4,000 2,233 1,767 2,092
Utilities 4,000 4,000 3,213 787 3,414
Witness fees 10,000 8,000 5,750 2,250 8,550
Legal 32,000 32,000 30,046 1,954 28,800
Miscellaneous 1.000 1,000 1.073 (73 1,045
Total city court 325,000 325,000 311.580 13.420 305,663
Tax & Licenses -
Salaries 70,000 71,000 72,484 {1,484) 69,930
Employees’ insurance 21,000 21,000 22,574 {1,574) 20,474
Payroll taxes 5,000 5,000 5,403 (403) 5,202
Retirement 8,500 10,000 14,817 (4,817) 9,527
Postage 3,500 1,000 849 151 949
Supplics 11,500 11,500 18,764 (7,264) 16,731
Miscellaneous 500 500 91 409 122
Total motor pool 120,000 120,000 134.982 (14,982} 122,835
Civil Service -
Salaries 15,000 15,000 13,970 1,030 7,931
Pavroll taxes 1,300 1,500 990 510 584
Supplies 1,500 1,500 - 1,500 -
Medical services 12,000 10,000 10,400 (400) 9,270
Legal fees 5.000 5,000 4,600 400 4.550
Total civil service 35,000 33,000 29,960 3,040 22,335
Total general government 1,778,000 1.823.000 1,832,723 (9,723) 1,779,067

(continued)



Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Expenditures (Continued)

Public Safety:
Police -

Salarics
Employees' insurance
Pavroll taxes
Retirement
General insurance
Equipment operating
Uniforms
Supplies
Membership dues
Prisoner housing
Ultilities
Telephone
Dog expenses
DARE program
Schools and convention
Professional fees
Miscellaneous

Total police

Tire -

Salaries
Emplovees' insurance
Pavroll taxes
Retirement
General insurance
Equipment operating
Uniforms
Supplies
Ultilities
Telephone
Maintenance and repairs
Professional services
Schools and conventions
Miscellaneous

Total fire

Total public safety

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

General Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2019
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

2019
Variance -

Budget Favorable 2018

Original T'inal Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
$ 1,480,500  § 1,415,500 $ 1,403,242 $ 12,258 $ 1,385,802
563,500 563,500 582,886 (19,386) 548,972
26,000 26,000 25,626 374 25,139
360,000 360,000 349,616 10,384 358,745
280,000 265,000 264,714 286 266,746
168,000 141,000 151,248 (10,248 145,329
20,000 20,000 20,125 (125) 20,352
50,000 40,000 47,713 (7,713) 43,076
8,000 8,000 15,101 (7.10D) 11,152
80,000 70,000 61,463 8,537 67,847
15,000 12,000 11,614 386 12.877
32,000 32,000 36,128 (4,128) 30,743
5,000 5,000 2,548 2,452 6,159
5,000 5,000 4,715 285 4,468
13,000 5,000 - 5,000 10,714
28,000 28,000 29,301 (1,301) 25,609
16,000 17.000 21.497 {4.497) 15,980
3.150.000 3,013,000 3.027.537 {14.537) 2,979,710
1,700,000 1,720,000 1,732,918 (12,918 1,663,100
590,000 590,000 657,739 {67.739) 576,047
140,000 140,000 141,197 (1,197) 137,918
380,000 420,000 433,329 (13,329 378,616
220,000 220,000 189,730 30,270 203,334
55,000 60,000 59,025 975 66,529
20,000 20,000 20,385 (385) 21,264
46,000 56,000 46,827 9,173 43,919
20,000 20,000 18,182 1,818 17,057
10,000 10,000 10,386 (386) 10,654
6,000 6,000 10,093 (4,093) 7,661
5,000 5,000 1,651 3,349 1,201
20,000 20,000 23,473 (3,473 19,556
13,000 13.000 14.864 (1.864) 11,302
3,225,000 3,300,000 3,359,799 (59,799 3,158,158
6,375.000 6.313.000 6.387.336 (74.336) 0,137,868
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
General Fund

Budgctary Comparison Schedule — Expenditures (Continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2019
With Comparative Actual Amounis for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

2019
Variance -
Budget Favorable 2018
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
Highwayvs and Streets:
Salaries $ 340,000 § 375000 $ 376969 5 (1,969) § 346,980
Employees' insurance 120,000 120,000 123,035 (3,035) 109,145
Payroll taxcs 24,000 28,000 27,910 90 25,717
Retirement 35,000 36,000 38,362 (2,362) 36,532
General insurance 182,000 182,000 187,464 (5,464) 180,118
Lquipment operating 67,000 63,000 67,100 (4,100) 86,976
Utilities and telephone 24,000 24,000 22,864 1,136 22,808
Professional services 15,000 15,000 12,984 2,016 26,091
Maintenance of grass 125,000 115,000 111,815 3,185 112,590
Small tools and supplies 28,000 48,000 47,843 157 32,164
Maintenance materials 55,000 40,000 32,400 7,600 47,319
Electricity for street lights 80,000 80,000 76,122 3,878 76,872
Lniforms 5,000 10,000 9,579 421 8,590
Miscellaneous 10.000 10,000 11.481 (1.481) 11.707
Total highwayvs
and sireets 1,110,000 1,146,000 1,145,928 72 1,123,609
Culture and Recrealion:

Parks -
Salaries 116,000 124,000 123,833 167 111,615
Emplovees' insurance 20,000 23,000 25,946 (2,946) 23,846
Payroll taxes 9,000 9,500 9,270 230 8,373
Retirement 10,000 11,000 11,763 (763) 11,018
General insurance 15,000 16,000 14,339 1,661 13,740
Equipment operating 8,000 8,000 7,766 234 5,446
Supplics 12,500 12,500 14,356 (1,856) 10,430
Repairs and maintenance 70,500 78,000 85,899 (7,899) 74,438
Utilities and iclephone 67,500 67,500 65,622 1,878 67,796
Security and janitorial - 1,000 899 101 2,225
Youth recreation 78,000 77,000 77,099 (99) 59,901
Miscellaneous 8.500 9,500 9.141 359 7.199
Total parks 415,000 437,000 445933 (8,933) 396,027

(continued)
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

General Fund

Budgctary Comparison Schedule — Expenditures (Continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2019
With Comparative Actual Amounis for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Capital outlay:
General government -
Administrative
Airport
Public safety -
Police
Total capital outlay

Total expenditures

2019
Variance -
Budeet Favorable 2018
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable) Actual

$ 5000 % 5000 % 33,120 % (28,1200 § 3,500
462,000 663,000 702,425 {39,425) 203,162
5,000 22.000 27.362 (5.362) -
472.000 690,000 762,907 (72.907) 208.662
$10.150.000  $10.409.000 $10.574.827 § (165827 8£9.645,233
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
General Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Year Ended December 31, 2019
With Comparative Actual Amounis for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

2019
Variance -
Budget Favorable 2018
Origmal I'inal Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Other financing sources:
Transters from other funds -
Utility Fund $6,155,000 §$6,031,000 § 6,155928 § 124,928 §£5970,728
Sales Tax Fund 1,853,000 1,810,000 1,855,625 45,625 1,854,662
Aiwrport Improvement Fund - - - - 17,076
Transters to other funds -
Airport Improvement Fund - - (18.028) (18.028) -
Total other financing
sources $RO08.000 S$7.841.000 $ 7993525 S 152595 57842466
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2019
With comparative Totals for December 31, 2018

Special Dbt Capital Totals
Revenue Service Projects 2019 2018
ASSETS
Cash and interest-bearing deposits § 171,030 § 374778 8 - $ 745808 § 708,520
Receivables -
Ad valorem taxes 17,153 - - 17,153 24,165
Other reccivable - - 9.442 9,442 -
Due from other governments - - 91,345 91.345 40.416
Total assets $ 188,183 §$ 574778 $ 100787 § 863748 § 773101
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable § 12277 % - $100.787 § 113064 8 39,132
Total habilities 12.277 - 100.787 113,004 39,132
Fund balances:
Restricted for economic development 24,078 - - 24,078 24,078
Restricted for youth recreation - - - - -
Restricted for fire prolection 90,946 - - 90,946 101,350
Restricted for sewer improvement 60,882 - - 60,882 94,837
Assigned for debt service - 574,778 - 374,778 512,420
Unassigned - - - - 1.284
Total fund balances 175,906 574,778 - 750,684 733,969

Total liabilities and fund balances § 188,183 $ 574778 S 100.787 $ 863,748 § 773.101
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 31, 2019
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Special Delbt Capital Totals
Revenue Service Projects 2019 2018
Revenues:
Taxes $ 84633 8 - $ - § B4,633 S5 83,608
Intergovernmental 95,140 - 992,035 1,087,175 499,701
Miscellancous 43,301 1,194 - 44,495 1.850
Total revenues 223.074 1,194 992,035 1,216,303 585,159
Expenditures:
Current -
General government - - - - -
Fire protection 10,992 - - 10,992 -
Capital outlay 80,296 - 1,143,095 1,223,391 629,625
Debt service -
Principal retirement - 615,000 - 615,000 597.000
Interest and fiscal charges - 80.677 - 80.677 94,376
Total expenditures 91.288 695.677  1,143.095 1.930.060 1.321.001
Deficiency of revenues
over expenditures 131.786 (694.483) (151.060) (713.757) (735.842)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - 756,841 149,776 906,617 701,836
Transfers oul (176.145) - - (176,145} (176,504}
Total financing sources (uses) (176,145 756,841 149,776 730,472 525,332
FExcess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over expenditures and other
[inancing uses (44,359) 62,358 (1,284) 16,715 (210,510)
Fund balance, beginning 220.265 512,420 1,284 733,969 944.479
Fund balance, ending $ 175906 S 574778 % - 8 750684 5 733969
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Public Improvement (Sewer) Fund

This fund accounts for the receipt and disbursement of ad valorem taxes dedicated to public improvement
of the City’s sewer facilities.

Maintenance and Operation — Fire Department Fund

This fund accounts for the receipt and disbursement of proceeds from the Vermilion Parish Police Jury to
be used for the purpose of construction, acquiring, improving, and maintaining fire department facilities
and equipment.

Economic Development District No. 1

This fund accounts for the receipt and disbursement of proceeds from the half cent sales and use tax
within the boundaries of Economic District No. 1.
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 2019

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018

Public Maint. and  Economic
Improvement Operation - Development
Sewer Fire Dept.  Disirict No. 1 Totals
Fund Fund Fund 2019 2018
ASSETS
Interest-bearing deposils $ 56006 $ 90,9496 $ 24,078 8171030  $196,100
Receivables:
Ad valorem taxes 17,153 - - 17,153 24.165
Total assets $ 73159 § 90946 § 24078 $188.183  $220.265
LIABILITIES AND FUND BAL ANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable § 12277 8§ -3 - $12277 % -
Total liabilitics 12,277 - - 12,277 -
Fund balances:
Restricted for economic
development - - 24,078 24,078 24,078
Restricted for vouth recreation - - - - -
Resiricted for fire protection - 90,946 - 90,946 101,350
Restricted for sewer
mmprovements 60,882 - - 60,882 94,837
Total fund balances 60,882 90,946 24.078 175,906 220,265
Total liabilities and
fund balances $ 73159 $ 90946 § 24078 SI8R. 183  $220.765
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended December 31, 2019
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Public Maint. and  Economic
TImprovement  Operation - Development
Sewer Fire Dept.  Disirict No. 1 Totals
Fund Fund Fund 2019 2018
Revenues:
Taxes $ 84633 § - % - $ 84,633 § 83,608
Intergovermmental - 95,140 - 95,140 169,976
Other revenues 21,950 21.351 - 43.301 897
Total revenues 106,583 116.491 - 223.074 254,481
Expenditures:
Current -
General government -
Economic development - - - - -
Public safety -
Firc protection 10,992 - 10,992 -
Capital outlay 51.975 28.321 - 80.29¢6 289,100
Total expenditures 1.975 39.313 - 91.288 299.100
FExcess (deficiency) of
revenues over
expenditures 54,608 77,178 - 131.786 (44.619)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (88.563) (87.582) - (176,145) {(159.428)
Total financing sources (uses) (88,563) {87.582) - (176,145 (159,428)
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures
and other tmancing uses {33,955) (10,404) - {44,359)  {204,047)
Fund balances, beginning 94,837 101,350 24,078 220,265 424 312
Fund balances, ending 00,88 & 00040 § 24078 0 $175906 $220.265




CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
Public Improvement Sewer Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance —

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2019

With Comparative Actual Amounis for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

2019
Variance -
Original Final Favorable 2018
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues:
Taxcs -
Ad valorem taxes $ 82,000 8 B3000 § 84,633 § 1,633 § 83,608
Other revenues -
Miscellaneous - 25,000 21,786 (3,214) -
Interest - - 164 164 134
Total revenues 82.000 108.000 106,583 (1.417) 83.742
Expenditures:
Current -
General government - - - - -
Capital outlay - 52,045 51,975 70 -
Total expenditures - 52.045 51.975 70 -
Excess of revenucs
over expenditures 82,000 55,955 54,608 {1,347} 83.742
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (82,000) _(138,933) (88,563} 50,392 (71.416)
Total other financing souces (uses) (82.000) (138.955) (88.563) 50,392 (71.416)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures and other
financing uses - (83,000) (33,955 49,045 12,326
Fund balance, beginning 94,837 94.837 94,837 - g2.511
Fund balance, ending $ 94837 S 11837 $ 60882 § 49045 & 94837
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
Maintenance and Operation — Fire Department Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

Year Ended December 31, 2019
With Comparative Actual Amounis for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

2019
Variance -
Origimal Final Favorable 2018
Budeet Budget Actual {(Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues:
Intergovernmental -
Federal grants $ - 8 - % - 8 - % -
Vermilion Parish Police Jury -
Fire protection 95,000 95,000 95,140 140 95,140
Fire insurance {ax - - - - 74,836
Other -
Interest and other revenue - 21,000 21,351 351 763
Total revenues 93,000 116.000 116,491 491 170,739
Expenditures:
Maintenance and repairs 5,000 10,000 10,992 (992) -
Capital outlay 5,000 15,000 28,321 (13.321) 299.100
Total expenditures 10.000 25.000 39,313 (14313 299,100
Deficiency of revenues
over expenditures 85,000 91,000 77,178 (13,822) (128,361)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (88,000} {87.500) (87.582) (82} (88.012%
Total other financing sources (uscs) (88.000) (87.500) (87.582) (82) (88.012)
Deficiency of revenues
and other sources over
expenditures and other uses {3,000) 3,500 (10,404) {13,904) (216,373)
Fund balance, beginning 101,350 101.350 101,350 - 317.723
Tund balance, ending $.og3s50 § 104850 § 90946 & (13.904) § 101350
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
Economic Development District No. 1 Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2019
With Comparative Actual Amounis for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

2019

Original
Budget

Variance -
Final Favorable
Budgel Actual {(Unlavorable)

2018
Actual

Revenues:
Taxes ~
Sales taxes $
Other revenues -
Interest

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current ~
General government ~
Economic development

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over expendilures

Fund balance, beginning

24.078

24.078 24.078 -

24.078

Fund balance, ending S

24.078

$ 24078 824078 § -

$__24.078
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NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

2012 Revenue Refunding Bond Fund

This fund accumulates monies for payment of the $4,160,000 Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012.
Debt service is financed by transfers from the Sales Tax Fund and the Maintenance and Operation — Fire
Department Fund.

2014 Sales Tax Revenue Bond Fund

This fund accumulates monies for payment of the $2,100,000 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2014.
Debt service is financed by transfers from the Sales Tax Fund.

2016 Revenue Bond Fund

This fund accumulates monies for payment of the $600,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 2016. Debt service is
financed by transfers from the Maintenance and Operation — Fire Department Fund.
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2019
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018

2012 2014 2016
Revenue Sales Tax Revenue
Refunding Revenue Bond Totals
Bond Fund  Bond Fund Fund 2019 2018
ASSETS
Interest - bearing deposits $ 387133 $ 120850 $ 66795 § 574778 0§ 512.420
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts pavable $ - 8 - 3 - 8 - % -
Fund balance:
Assigned for debl service 387.133 120.850 66,795 574,778 512,420
Total liabilitics and [und balance $. 387133 8 120850 $ 06795 § 374778 $.512.420
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 31, 2019
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018

2012 2014 2016
Revenue Sales Tax Revenue
Refunding Revenue Bond Totals
Bond Fund  Bond Fund Fund 2019 2018
Revenues:
Other revenues -
Interest income s 776 s 313§ 105§ 1,194 % 953
Expenditures:
Debt service -
Principal retirement 434,000 168,000 13,000 615,000 397,000
Interest and fiscal charges 35.978 32,105 12.594 80,677 94,376
Total expenditures 469.978 200.105 25.594 695,677 691.376
Deficiency of revenues
over expenditures (469.202) (199.792 (25.489) (694.483) (690,423
Other financing sources:
Transfers in 477.557 202.098 77.186 756,841 701,836
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over
expenditures 8,355 2,306 51,697 62,358 11,413
Fund balance, beginning 378.778 118.544 15.098 312,420 301.007
Fund balance, ending S 387.133 S 120850 $ 66795 $ 574778 % 512,420
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NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Airport Improvement Fund

This fund accounts for improvement projects at the Abbeville Chris Crusta Memorial Airport. Program
expenditures are generally funded by federal and state grants.

LCDBG Street Improvement Fund

This fund accounts for improvement projects for the LCDBG. Program expenditures are generally
funded by federal and state grants.
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2019
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018

LCDBG
Airport Street
Improvement  Improvement Totals
Fund Fund 2019 2018
ASSETS
Cash and interest - bearing deposits $ - 8 - - 8 -
Other receivable - 9,442 9,442 -
Due from other governments 36,445 54,900 91.345 40.416
h 36445 % 64,342 100,787 & 40,416
TLIABILITIES AND FUNID BATLANCE
Liabilitics:
Accounts pavable $ 36,445 64,342 100,787 § 39,132
Due to other fund - - - -
Total liabilities 36.445 64,342 100.787 39.132
Fund balance:
Unassigned - - - 1,284
Total Habilities and fund balance S 36,445 % 64,342 100,787 3% 40.416
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 31, 2019
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

LCDBG
Airport Street
Improvement  Improvement Totals
Fund Fund 2019 2018
Revenues:
Federal grants $ - % BOO,000 & 800,000 % 297472
State grants 192.035 - 192.035 32.253
Total revenues 192.035 800,000 992,038 320,725
Expenditures:
Current -
Professional services - - - -
Capital outlay -
Afrport improvements 238,391 - 238,391 330,525
Street overlay improvements - 904,704 904,704 -
Total expenditures 238.391 904,704 1,143,095 330,525
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (46,356) (104,704) {151,060) (800)
Other financing sources:
Transfers in 45,072 104,704 149,776 -
Transfers out - - - {17.076)
Total financing sources (uscs) 45.072 104,704 149.776 (17.076)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over expeditures (1,284) - {1,284) {17,876)
Fund balance, beginning 1.284 - 1,284 19.160
Fund balance, ending M - 3 - 8 - 3 1.284
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
Enterprise Fund
Utility System Fund

Comparative Departmental Analysis of Revenues and Expenses
Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Llectric Water
2019 2018 2019 2018
Operating revenucs:
Charges for services $12,846,348 $12,911,867 $1,843,467 $1,843,014
Other revenues 260,195 251,200 13.428 35,850
Total operating revenues 13,106,543 13.163.067 1,.856.893 1.878.870
Operating expenses:
Salaries 361,795 407,027 491,987 465,167
Emplovees' insurance 107,777 101,174 154,788 128,268
OPEB (benefit) expense (446,571) 61,200 (641,363) 77,590
Payroll taxes 25,984 30,041 37,504 35,198
Retirement 34,766 39,377 48,535 44,531
Pension (benefit) obligation expense {81,893) 114,246 {13,209) 130,526
General insurance 99,828 96,364 75,710 77,453
Equipment operating expense 45,975 51,090 22,008 30,406
Mamtenance and repairs ~ systems 493,789 335,415 131,043 235,562
Electricity for pumps - - 50 206
Utilities - - 122,119 117,095
Materials, tools and supplies 41,056 29,698 177,668 178,187
Electric power purchased 6,609,773 6,682,136 - -
Office expense, postage and
computer processing - - - -
Bad debts and collection fees - - - -
Miscellancous 30,459 28,871 27,139 25,216
Depreciation 321,999 324,062 262,391 264,884
Allocation of general and
administrative expenses 92,735 465,463 69,554 349,098
Total operating cxpenscs 7.737.476 8.766.164 965,924 2.159.387
Operating mcome (loss) $ 5369 067 S 4396903 S 890971 $ (280517




General and

Sewerape Administrative Totals

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
$ 1,802,899 $ 1,807,499 S - - $16,492,714 $16,562,380
37,698 35,165 - - 311,321 322,221
1,840,597 1,842,664 - - 16,804,035 16,884,601
364,420 365,103 376,025 401,277 1,594,227 1,638,574
105,912 98,865 165,300 148,124 533,777 476,431
(438.846) 59,803 (684,916) 89,600 (2,211,696) 288,193
26,760 26,830 28,031 29,917 118,279 121,986
38,836 37,154 45,173 44,418 167,310 165,480
(32,618) 102,436 - 112,703 (127,720} 459,931
64,929 64,066 14,279 13,741 254,746 251,624
29,811 28,957 26,227 25,920 124,021 136,373
245,843 206,159 - - 870,675 777,136
56,461 53,380 - - 56,511 53,586
105,353 103,106 14,047 13,344 241,519 233,545
132,441 74,231 - - 351,165 282,116
- - - - 6,609,773 6,682,136
- - £2,393 91,044 £2,393 91,044
- - 56,699 76,703 56,699 76,703
30,566 21,043 11,869 16,094 100,033 91,224
501,220 485,680 96,720 100,774 1,182,330 1,175,400
69,554 349.098 (231.847) (1.163.659) - -
1.300.642 2.075.931 - - 10,004,042 13.001.482
S 539953 S (233267} 3 - $ - $ 6799903 5 3883119
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COMPLIANCE, INTERNAL CONTROL
AND

OTHER MATTERS
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1231 East Laurel Avenue P 337-457-4146 DSFCPAS.COM
Eunice, LA 70535 F 337-457-5060

DARNALL S'KES OTHER LOCATIONS: ‘ .
& FREDERICK Lafayette Morgan City Abbeville

A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor
And Members of the City Council
City of Abbeville, Louisiana

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Abbeville, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Abbeville, Louisiana’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated July 8, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Abbeville,
Louisiana’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Abbeville,
Louisiana’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City
of Abbeville, Louisiana’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
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Our consideraiion of internal conirol was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be maierial
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencics in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  Howcever, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Citv of Abbeville, Louisiana’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and granl agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our iests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the resulis of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the cffectivencss of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in  considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.

Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However, under Louisiana
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document.

Darnall, Sikes, & Frederick
A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants

Abbeville, Louisiana
July 8, 2020
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OTHER LOCATIONS:
Lafayette Morgan City Abbeville

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for each Major Program
And on Internal Control over Compliance
Required by Uniform Guidance

The Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor
And Members of the City Council
City of Abbeville, Louisiana

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Abbeville, Louisiana’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of City
of Abbeville, Louisiana’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2019. City of
Abbeville, Louisiana’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Abbeville, Louisiana’s
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about St.
Landry Parish Government’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major

federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Abbeville,
Louisiana’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Abbeville, Louisiana, complied, in all maierial respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on cach of its
major federal programs for the vear ended December 31, 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of Abbeville, Louisiana, is responsible for establishing and maintaining etfective
internal conlrol over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Abbeville, T.ouisiana’s internal control
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major
federal program fto determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circomstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance wiih the Uniform Guidance, bul not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Abbeville, Louisiana’s internal conirol over
compliance.

A deficiency in infernal confrol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or emplovees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal conirol over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencics, in internal confrol over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a tvpe of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
infernal control over compliance 18 a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a tvpe of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important cnough to merit aticntion by thosc charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deliciencies in initernal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal conirol over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. However, under
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public
document.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Abbeville, Louisiana, as of and for
the vear ended December 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise City of Abbeville, Louisiana’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thercon dated
July 8, 2020, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Ouwr audit was
conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
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basic financial statemenits. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presenicd for
purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directlv to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statemenis and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statemenls or lo the basic [inancial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Darnall, Sikes, & Frederick

A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants

Abbeville, Louisiana
July 8, 2020
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PARTI

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Ycar Ended December 31, 2019

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Auditor’s Report

An unqualified opinion has been expressed on the primarv governmentl’s governmental
activities, business fype activities, and each major fund financial statements as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2019.

Due to the omission of the financial data of the legally separatc component units of the City
of Abbeville, Louisiana, we have expressed an adverse opinion on the aggregate discretely

presented component units opinion umt.

Internal Control Deficiencies - Financial Reporting

No significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting was disclosed during the
audit of the financial statements.

Material Noncompliance — Financial Reporting

No mstances of noncompliance material to the financial statements were disclosed during the
audii of the financial statements.

FEDERAL AWARDS

Auditor’s Report — Major Programs

In owr opinion, the City of Abbeville, Louisiana, complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements thal are applicable to each of its major [ederal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2019,

Major Program — Identification

Cily of Abbeville, Louisiana, had Community Development Block Grant CFDA #14.228, at
December 31, 2019, tested as a major program.

Major Program — Threshold

The dollar threshold to distinguish Tvpe A and Type B programs is $750,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2019,

Low-Risk Auditee

City of Abbeville, Louisiana, is not considered a low-risk auditee for the vear ended
December 31, 2019.
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PART II

PART III

PARTIV

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
Ycar Ended December 31, 2019

Internal Control Deficiencies — Major Program

There were no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over
compliance over the major program disclosed during the audit of the financial statements.

Tinding Related to Federal Program

There were no instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance, and are reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
Compliance for Fach Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by
the Uniform Guidance.

FINDINGS RELATING TO AN AUDIT IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

The audit did not disclosc any findings that would require disclosure.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATING TO FEDERAL PROGRAMS
There are no findings and questioned costs related to federal programs.
MANAGEMENT LETTER

A management letter was not issued for the yvear ended December 31, 2019,
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended December 31, 2019

Prior vear audit findings:

There were no prior vear audit findings.
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA
Summary Schedule of Management’s Corrective Action Plan

Ycar Ended December 31, 2019

There are no current audit findings.
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2019

Disbursements/
Federal Grantor/Pass Through Agencv/Program Name CYDA# Ixpenditures
United States Department of Housing & Urban Development
Passed Through Iouisiana Office of Community Development
Community Development Block Grant/State's Program
2018 LCDBG Public I'acilities Program 14.228 § 800,000

$ 800,000
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2000 Kaliste Saloom Road, Suite 300 p 337-232-3312 DSFCPAS.COM
Lafayette, LA 70508 F 337-237-3614
DARNALL SIKES OTHER LOCATIONS:

Eunice Morgan City Abbeville

& FREDERICK

A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’” REPORT
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

Mayor Mark Piazza
City of Abbeville
Abbeville, Louisiana

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by City of Abbeville (Entity),
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified in the
LLA’s Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the year ended December 31, 2019. The Entity’s
management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the AUPs.

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of
Government Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the
specified users of this report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the
procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other

purpose.
The procedures and associated findings are as follows:

Written Policies and Procedures

1. Obtain and inspect the entity’s written policies and procedures and observe that they address each of
the following categories and subcategories (if applicable to public funds and the entity’s operations):

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget

No exceptions were noted during the year ended December 31, 2018 AUP engagement; therefore,
this section was excluded from testing this year.

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor
list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4)
controls to ensure compliance with the public bid law; and (5) documentation required to be
maintained for all bids and price quotes.

No exceptions were noted during the year ended December 31, 2018 AUP engagement; therefore,
this section was excluded from testing this year.

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving

No exceptions were noted during the year ended December 31, 2018 AUP engagement; therefore.
this section was excluded from testing this year.
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Receipts, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits

No exceplions were noted during the vear ended December 31, 2018 AUP engacement; therefore
this section was excluded from testing this vear.

Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked.

No exceptions were noted during the vear ended December 31, 2018 AUP engagement; therefore
this seclion was excluded from testing this vear,

Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process

No exceptions were noted during the vear ended December 31, 2018 AUP engagement; therefore,
this section was excluded from testing this vear.

Credit Cards (und debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards are to
be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers,
and (5) monitoring card usage

No exceptions were noted during the vear ended December 31, 2018 AUDP engagement; therefore,
this scction was cxcluded from testing this vear.

Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by
categorv of expense, (3) documentation requircments, and (4) required approvers

No exceptions were noted during the vear ended December 31, 2018 AUP engagcement; therefore,
this seclion was excluded from festing this vear.

Fthics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121, (2)
actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations,
and (4) requirement that all emplovees, including clected officials, annually attest through signature
verification that they have read the entity’s ethics policy. Note: Lthics requirements are not
applicable to nonprofits.

No exceptions were noted during the vear ended December 31, 2018 AUDP engacement; therefore,

this section was excluded from festing this vear.

Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) EMMA reporting requirements, (3) debt
reserve requirements, and (4) debt scrvice requirements.

No exceplions were noted during the vear ended December 31, 2018 AUP engasement; therefore,

this seclion was excluded from testing this vear.

Disaster Recovery/Business Continngity, including (1) identification of critical data and frequency
of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separaic physical location isolated from ihe network,
(3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all
systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6)
identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event.

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.




Board (or Finance Conumnittee, if applicable)

No exceptions were noted during the year ended December 31, 2018 AUP engagement; therefore, this
section was excluded from testing this year.

Bank Reconciliations

No exceptions were noted during the year ended December 31, 2018 AUP engagement; therefore, this
section was excluded from testing this year.

Collections

Obtain a listing of deposii sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash)
are prepared and management’s representation that the listing 1s complete. Randomly select 5 deposit
sites {(or all deposit sites if less than 5).

Oblained listing of cash collection locations and management’s representation thal listing is complete.

For each deposit site selected, obiain a listing of colleciion locations and management’s representation
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e. 5
collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to
employee job dulies (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees aboul their job duties)
at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at cach collection
location such that:

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers.

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.

by Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank
deposits, unless another emplovee/otficial is responsible for reconciling collection documentation
(e.g. pre-numbered receipis) (o the deposit.

Written policies and procedurcs were obtained and do address the functions noted above,

¢) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posiing colleclion entries to
the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another emplovee/official is responsible for
reconciling ledger postings to cach other and to the deposit.

Written policies and procedures were oblained and do address the functions noted above.

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary
ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible for collecting cash,
unless another employcee verifics the reconciliation.

Written policies and procedures were oblained and do address the functions noled above.

¢) Inquire of management that all cmplovees who have access to cash are covered by a bond or
insurance policy for theft.

Emplovees who have access to cash are covered bv an insurance policy for theft.




Randomlv sclect two deposit daies for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 under
“Bank Reconciliations” above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made
on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same
day). Alicrnately, the practitioner may usc a source document other than bank statements when
selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book,
etc. Obtain supporting documentation for cach of the 10 deposits and:

a) Observe that receipis are sequentially pre-numbered.

No exception noted.

b} Trace sequeniially pre-numbered receipls, sysiem reporls, and other related collection
documentation to the deposit slip.

No exception noted.

¢) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement.

No exception noted.

dy Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location
(within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit
is less than $100).

No exception noted.

¢) Trace the actual deposit per the bank stalement o the general ledger.

No exception noted.

Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases/payments, travel reimbursements, and petty cash
purchases)

8.

Oblain a listing of locations thal process payments for the fiscal period and management’s
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 3).

Listing of disbursements and management’s representation that the listing is complete was obtained.

For cach location selected under 48 above, obtain a lisiing of those employees involved with non-
payroll purchasing and payvment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to emplovee
job duties (if the agency has no writien policies and procedures, inquire of emplovees about their job
duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that:

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and
placing an order/making the purchase.

Written policv and procedurces were obtained and do address the functions noted above.

by Atleast two employees are involved in processing and approving paymenis to vendors.

Written policv and procedures were obtained and do address the Tunctions noted above.

¢} The emplovee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files.

Written policv and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.




10.

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments.

Written policy and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.

For cach location sclected under #8 above, obtain the enfity’s non-pavroll disbursement {ransaction
population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management’s representation that
the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursemenits for cach location, obtain supporting

documentation for each transaction and:
a) Observe that the disbursement matched the related original invoice/billing statement.

No exception noted.

b) Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic

togging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable.

No exception noted.

Credit Cards/Debir Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards

No exceptions were noted during the vear ended December 31, 2018 AUP engagement; therefore, this
section was excluded from testing this vear.

Travel and FExpense Reimbursement

No exceptions were noted during the vear ended December 31, 2018 AUP engagement; therefore, this
section was excluded from testing this year.

Contracis

No exceptions were noted during the vear ended December 31, 2018 AUP engagement; therefore, this
section was excluded from testing this vear.

Payroll and Personnel

No exceptions were noted during the vear ended December 31, 2018 AUP engagement; therefore, this
section was excluded from testing this vear.

Ethics (excluding nonprofits)

No exceptions were noted during the vear ended December 31, 2018 AUP engagement; therefore, this
scction was cxcluded from testing this year.

Debt Service {excluding nonprofits)

No exceptions were noted during the year ended December 31, 2018 AUP engagement; therefore, this
section was excluded from testing this year.

Other

No exceptions were noted during the year ended December 31, 2018 AUP engagement; therefore, this

section was excluded from testing this vear.



We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be
the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs.
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures,
other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported (o vou.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identificd
in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance.
Accordingly, this report is not suilable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this
report is distributed by the I.1.A as a public document.

Dewnal], Sihe & Sredevick
A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants

Tunice, Louisiana
Julv 8, 2020



